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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE
MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG
KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached than
other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors
should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies
and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful
consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of
GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other
sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a
risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high
market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market
in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing and the Stock Exchange take no
responsibility for the contents of this report, make no representation
as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the
whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Runway Global
Holdings Company Limited (the “Company” and together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”) collectively and individually accept full
responsibility, include particulars given in compliance with the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the
“GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard
to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries,
confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other
matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or this
report misleading.

This report will remain on the “Latest Listed Company Announcement”
page of the website of the Stock Exchange at www.hkexnews.hk for at
least seven days from the day of its publication and on the Company’s
website at www.runwayglobal.com.
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Financial Summary

MBHE

Results ESE

Revenue ON

Gross profit EH

Profit before income tax R Fr St AE 1

Profit attributable to owners RNATNEB AEL T
of the Company

Financial position B IR

Total assets BEE

Interest-bearing borrowings TEEE

Total liabilities BEE

Shareholders’ equity AR R 2

Current ratio (note 1)

Quick ratio (note 2)

Return on assets (note 3)
Return on equity (note 4)
Gearing ratio (note 5)

Inventory turnover days (note 6)

mEtL R (K1)
EH L (2 2)
BEBRWE (M:E3)
MRAREIRE (ffata)
BEBRALE (K:FEs)
FEESRY (fi26)

+

Trade receivables turnover days B 5 rE uﬁz EOELELEDN:
(note 7) (Kt ) 57 days/H
Trade payables turnover days B 5 e[ s IR R K
(note 8) (K15E8) 67 days/H
Note: Fis
1. Current ratio = current assets/current liabilities 1.
2. Quick ratio = current assets less inventory/current liabilities 2.
@) Return on assets = Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year/total 3.
assets
4. Return on equity = Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year/ 4.
shareholders’ equity
5. Gearing ratio = Interest-bearing borrowings/shareholders’ equity 5.
6. Inventory turnover days = Inventory balance/cost of sales for the year x number of 6.
days for the year
7. Trade receivables turnover days = Trade receivables/revenue for the year x number 7.
of days for the year
8. Trade payables turnover days = Trade payables/cost of sales for the year x number 8.

of days for the year

2014
HK$°000
FTHET
379,715
94,087
31,567

25,679

2014
HK$’000
TR

210,034
3,131
87,265
122,769
2.22

1.98
12.2%
20.9%
2.6%

26 days/H

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=+—RHLEE

2013 2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
T FHT T
360,707 331,088 306,314
84,941 81,222 66,563
18,365 28,301 11,748
13,529 23,152 9,417
As at 31 December
W+=A=+-—H
2013 2012 2011
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FAT AT
196,950 158,396 130,639
9,564 2,478 4,328
99,685 101,663 88,913
97,265 56,733 41,726
1.78 1.36 1.22
1.60 1.09 0.95
6.9% 14.6% 7.2%
13.9% 40.8% 22.6%
9.8% 4.4% 10.4%
24 days/H 40days/H 36 days/H
72 days/H 46 days/H 44 days/H
78 days/H 92 days/H 98 days/H
MELE=RBEE/ RBAR

R

=RBAERFE/ RBAR

BEONREX=ARFAHEEAREFE 0/ &

BE

PR 7R @ 4R ok = RN R HEA A REAS = a ) /AR
R
EEAMLER=REE/ BRER

FEEERZ=-HFE

R

B 5 K

SRR FEHERAXFE

HBHERY =8 Z TR/ FE

WA XFERE

EC) F

REBEERE = HRNRIA/FE

HERAXFERE
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Revenue

L/ON

HK$’'000
THTT

2014
2013
2012
2011

331,088

320.000 400,000

240,000

0 80.000 760,000

Profit attributable to owners of the Company
ARATEE ABLEF

HK$’'000
T

2014
2013
2012
2011

0 70.000 50.000 30,000
Shareholders’ equity
BRERERE

HK$’000
TR

2014
2013
2012
2011

0 30.000 50.000 90.000 120.000 750.000
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Chairman’s Statement
FEREE

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Runway Global
Holdings Company Limited, | am delighted to present the audited
consolidated results of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group” or “Runway Global”) for the year ended
31 December 2014.

GROUP’S PERFORMANCE

The Group’s delivered a year of steady growth in revenue and
solid financial performance. The Group’s revenue increased from
approximately HK$360,707,000 in year 2013 to HK$379,715,000 in
year 2014, representing an increase of approximately 5.3%. This is the
third consecutive year that the revenue has increased steadily and the
steady growth in revenue in the past few years is the result of exertion
of Group’s hardworking and professional team members. The profit
attributable to owners of the Company increased from approximately
HK$13,529,000 in year 2013 to approximately HK$25,679,000 in
year 2014, representing an increase of approximately 89.8%. The
significant increase in profit attributable to owners of the Company
is mainly due to the absence of listing expenses in the year ended
31 December 2014, which were incurred by the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2013, coupled with a steady increase in the
Group’s revenue.

PRIVATE LABEL PRODUCTS

Private label products continued to be the core business of the
Group, contributing to 86.0% (2013: 86.8%) of the total revenue of
the Group for the year. Revenue from private label products increased
by approximately 4.4% to approximately HK$326,680,000 (2013:
HK$313,033,000) while gross profit also increased by 9.2% to
approximately HK$76,647,000 (2013: HK$70,183,000).

OWN BRAND PRODUCTS

Own brand products remains an important driver of our business
growth and experienced a strong growth in 2014. Own brand products
accounted for 14.0% (2013: 13.2%) of the total revenue of the Group
for the year. The revenue as well as the gross profit from own brand
products increased substantially in 2014. For the year 2014, revenue
from own brand products increased by approximately 11.2% to
approximately HK$53,035,000 (2013: HK$47,674,000) while gross
profit also increased by 18.2% to approximately HK$17,440,000 (2013:
HK$14,758,000).

RAAEBRREHRHEZERERRAEES
([E=2g]) MAZBARAREWMBER
B (et [N E ] =X [ RIRER ) BE—F
—HFE+TZ A=+ B FENEERRS

AEBEHRE
AEE2FRAREBEAMBERER
e AEEBNWAR - —=ZFFEH
360,707,000 LG NE — T — NFEFEH
379,715,0007% 7T * F 18 £95.3% - LA B
HEEZFFREM - MRARBEEEE
EBEIHASEHEZENEKATER -
RATEBAEEENH - —=FFEF4
13,529,000 8 T ME—E—HFFELH
25,679,000 7T  FH1E4789.8% ° AN A
BABESEMAELER  FZHREEZT
—FE+—A=t+—HILtFELE FHAX
(HAEBREBEE_T—=F+-_A=+—
ALEFEES) MEAEERABY LS
Fir ek

BERREm
MEERDAAEBMZLER X
FEARFEREEFEBON(ZFT—=
F:868%) MMEMEMMNEEBEMA
4.4%ZE 49326,680,000%8 jt ( — T — =
£ : 313,033,000/ jT) © M E F 75 i &
9.2% & #]76,647,0008 7T (Z & — = :
70,183,000 7T) °

BEEmEER
BEMEERDARERERNEZHS
B ERZE—NUFEEARY - RAFE
BEAmMERGEASEREXRE14.0% (=
T—=F:132%)c BAMBEERMNES
EREFR-_Z—NFEZLM R=F
—NFEFE - BEREERMHEEEILN
#711.2% & #953,035,0008 L (Z & — =
F 47,674,000 L) © B IR IE KL
18.2% B #917,440,0008 7T (—ZE—=
14,758,000 7C) °
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FUTURE PROSPECTS

The year 2015 will be a challenging year. For global economic
environment, we expect there will be gentle improvement in the North
America economy, especially US economy, in 2015. On the other hand,
the economic growth of China is relatively strong and so the labour
cost in China has been increasing over the years and this increasing
trend is expected to continue in the near future.

We will continue to focus on the North America market, which is
benefited from the gentle economic recovery, as we have established
concert business network there. Furthermore, we will explore more
business opportunities in developing and promoting the own brand
products operation, by participating in more trade fairs and fashion
shows. The revenue from own brand products in 2014 accounted for
approximately 14.0% of total income, increased from approximately
13.2% in 2013. We expect the revenue from own brand products will
increase continuously in the near future.

For production management, we will continue to enhance the operating
efficiency in various aspects, such as shorter delivery time, in response
to the rapidly changing apparel market and rising production cost in
China.

APPRECIATION

Looking back on this year, | would like to thank all the shareholders,
customers and business partners for their trust in, understanding of
and support of to the Group over the years. Moreover, | would also
like to thank all staff members who work so hard for our Group. With a
focused senior management and professional team, we will continue to
explore new business opportunities in the challenging year ahead and
strive for the best returns for our shareholders.

Hubert Tien (FHEZH)
Chairman
16 March 2015
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EERSNEEBEEFE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Hubert TIEN, aged 46, was appointed as an executive Director
(the “Director”) on 19 June 2013. Mr. Tien is one of the founders of the
Group and the chairman of the Board. He is responsible for overseeing
the in-house operations, manufacturing and sourcing activities and
devising business expansion plans of the Group. Mr. Tien has about 20
years of experience in garment trading, manufacturing and marketing
in the United States, Australia and Canada markets. Mr. Tien was a
director of Bright Cheer Company Limited (“Bright Cheer”), a textile
company, from 1992 to 2004 prior to its dissolution. He ceased to
participate in the operation of Bright Cheer in December 2000 and
founded the Group with Mr. Gozashti in 2001. Bright Cheer ceased to
carry on business afterwards and was dissolved by striking off in 2004
under section 291 of the Companies Ordinance. Mr. Tien is a brother
of Ms. Winnie Tien, a member of the senior management of the Group.

Mr. Farzad GOZASHTI, aged 49, was appointed as an executive
Director on 19 June 2013. Mr. Gozashti is one of the founders of
the Group and the chief marketing officer of the Group and the chief
executive officer of Runway Fashions, Inc., a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company. Mr. Gozashti is responsible for overseeing the design,
sales and marketing activities and devising business expansion plans of
the Group. Mr. Gozashti graduated with a bachelor degree of science in
business administration (marketing) from San Francisco State University
in California of USA in May 1989. Mr. Gozashti has about 20 years of
experience in design and product development. Before he founded the
Group with Mr. Tien in 2001, he had also created and launched the
apparel line “BLANC NOIR” through FG Industries, Inc., which was a
private company engaged in the apparel business in the United States
then wholly owned by Mr. Gozashti and was subsequently dissolved in
2006 after transferring the “BLANC NOIR” trademark to Runway Global
Limited at a nominal consideration.

WITES

HBEZHEE 465 R_F—=F<ATh
REZERARRRITES ([E£)) - B
ERAKEARAZ -REFEIF AR
EBAEENEEE  £ENMRERD L]
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. TANG Tsz Kai, Kevin, aged 45, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 22 November 2013. Mr. Tang obtained a
degree of Bachelor of Science from University of Toronto in November
1998, a Bachelor of Laws from City University of Hong Kong in
November 2004 and a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws from City
University of Hong Kong in September 2005. He has been a barrister-
at-law in private practising in Hong Kong since 2006, specialising in
criminal practice. He was also a part-time research assistant in City
University of Hong Kong in 2002.

Mr. TANG Shu Pui Simon, aged 50, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 22 November 2013. Mr. Tang
is a practising solicitor and an accredited mediator with the Hong Kong
International Arbitration Centre. Mr. Tang is currently a partner of P. C.
Woo & Co., Solicitors. Mr. Tang is a member of the Appeal Tribunal
of the Hong Kong Federation of Insurers, legal advisor to the General
Agents and Managers Association of Hong Kong, founding member
and vice-president of the Hong Kong Institute of Patent Attorneys,
member of the Basic Law Promotion Steering Committee and member
of the Standing Committee on Standards and Development of the
Law Society of Hong Kong. Mr. Tang has been a visiting lecturer in
Intellectual Property Law in The Hong Kong Polytechnic University and
a part time lecturer in Hong Kong University School of Professional and
Continuing Education.

At P. C. Woo & Co., Solicitors, Mr. Tang has served clients that operate
in, among others, the apparel industry.

Mr. Tang was appointed as a non-executive director of Bestway
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 718), the shares of which
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, with effect from
10 January 2013.

Mr. LAl Man Sing, aged 46, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 22 November 2013.

He obtained his first degree from The London School of Economics
and Political Science, University of London, the United Kingdom in
August 1990 and earned a Master degree (long distance) in Business
Administration from University of Western Sydney, Australia in August
2007. He is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, also a fellow member of The Australian Society of
Certified Practising Accountants.
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Mr. Lai worked in the accounting field for over 20 years and he took
senior financial position for listed companies. From September 2007
to March 2008, he was the financial controller of Jetup Electronic
(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of J.I.C. Technology Company
Limited (now known as China Renewable Energy Investment Limited)
(stock code: 987, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange). He was responsible for producing accounting
reports, managing accounting operations and preparing budgets and
cashflow projections. Since March 2008, Mr. Lai has served as the
financial controller of Mainland Headwear Holdings Limited (stock code:
1100), the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. He was promoted to the position of chief financial officer in
February 2010 and has been in charge of the finance department up to
the present. In addition, Mr. Lai was an independent director of USmart
Mobile Device Inc. (previously known as ACL Semiconductors Inc.), a
company listed on the Over the Counter (OTC) markets in the United
States with stock code UMDI, from December 2010 to August 2013,
during which he also acted as the chairman of its audit committee.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Winnie TIEN, aged 44, is the chief administration officer and head
of quality control of the Group principally responsible for overseeing
the Group’s administrative matters and quality control. Ms. Tien joined
the Group on 8 October 2001. Ms. Tien completed a professional
diploma course in human resource management (PRC) organised
by the Hong Kong Productivity Council in March 2009. Ms. Tien has
been participating in the management of the Group’s overall operation
for over 10 years. She has been primarily responsible for the Group’s
supervision, quality control, administration and management. Ms. Tien
is a sister of Mr. Tien, an executive Director.

Mr. CHAN Ka Yu, aged 35, is the chief financial officer of the Group
and company secretary of the Company and Runway Global Limited,
an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Chan joined
the Group in late June 2013. He is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting and company secretarial matters of the
Group. Mr. Chan graduated with a bachelor of commerce in accounting
from the Hong Kong Shue Yan University in October 2009. He is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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From September 2010 to April 2012, Mr. Chan was employed as a
senior accountant of JBPB &Company (“JBPB”) and his last position
was senior associate at BDO Limited (“BDO”) (due to merger of
business between JBPB and BDO). From May 2012 to April 2013,
he worked as an investor relations officer for Fantasia Group (China)
Company Limited, a subsidiary of Fantasia Holdings Group Co.,
Limited (stock code: 1777), the shares of which are listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. David BLITZ, aged 46, is the Group’s head of sales and marketing
for the United States. Mr. Blitz joined the Group in April 2006. He is
primarily responsible for overseeing the Group’s sales and marketing
activities in the US market and in particular, establishing and
maintaining customer relationship. Mr. David Blitz has accumulated
about 20 years of experience in the fashion industry. Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. David Blitz worked in G-Il Apparel Group from June 1992
to January 1997. He worked in Amerex Group LLC, an international
apparel company, from January 1997 to July 2006. Mr. David Blitz
graduated from the University of South Florida with a Bachelor Degree
of Science (Business Administration).

Ms. LI Yinzhen, aged 46, is the head of Jiaxing Runway Global
Garment Limited (“Runway Jiaxing”), an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, principally responsible for overall
management of the manufacturing operation of Runway Jiaxing. Ms. Li
has more than 13 years of experience in apparel manufacturing in the
PRC. Before Ms. Li joined the Group in April 2006, she worked at Sky
Voice International Company Limited, an apparel manufacturer, from
2000 to 2005.

Ms. MA Wing Sze, aged 45, is the Group’s assistant merchandising
manager principally responsible for merchandising. Ms. Ma joined the
Group on 22 October 2001. Ms. Ma has over 20 years of experience
in merchandising and marketing in the apparel industry. Prior to joining
of the Group, Ms. Ma worked as a merchandiser from 1991 to 2001
for companies including Atex Garments Limited and Rena Gabriel HK
Limited.

MN-E—ZTFENAE_T——FMEA - &L
ERERERET ((HAD EB=ReEs
B - RARBEB AT B AR B EERE
MEFMERAR ([ZEER]) ORI
B ERRETEBREN) 2ERXGEAD -
TE-——FRAE-ZT-=FWMAHMH"
BEEREEFEREEERAT (RMHR
S8 1777 - HRDAREERFTER L) BB
RNEfERFEE (FE) BRARIMIEESE
BREEMF -

David BLITZ &4 - 4675% * RS EEE
EREHEE Btz ERZTTRFWA
MARER - FEZHRETAEEREEE
MEZEERTSHEELTS  LEREIK
W R PRIZ o David Blitz e A R R R
BRI 20 F 88, - NAKREER] - David Blitz
EEBR—NANZFAAZ—NLILtFE—A
R G-Il Apparel Group TAE e — AL AL EF—
RZEZZTTRFLAHE - BRERERER
& Amerex Group LLC {E8  David Blitz 764
EENEHERERE - BENEZ (IBE
) BB -

FEBrt 465 AEHEHRIRSG (57
) BRAR ((FrEH] ARFRER
BWBAR) X8 TEAENHERLE
EBONERER - FLTNHBERERIER
BABEBISFELR - FRIN _TTREFN
AMARSER > ER_FTTFE_FT
hFEHE  RREEEBRAREREAR AT
TfE-

BkFat 455 BASEPEBEREL
B FEAEHBIE  BLTRIZEE—
FHAZTZHMAREE - FRREERE
EB0FMHBREHLER - MALEE
Bl BXTER—NANL—FE2EZEZT—FRN
Atex Garments Limited X ZE R BB ER A
FIENRIIHIRES -

13



14

Runway Global Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2014

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management &% k&R & 12 BB E15

Ms. Sue McBRIDE, aged 38, is the Group’s senior designer. Ms.
McBride joined the Group in July 2008. She is primarily responsible for
the design and development of different types of apparel products of
the Group. Ms. McBride has about 12 years of experience in design
of garment. Prior to joining the Group, Ms. McBride was employed by
Guess? Manufacturing Inc. from August 2002 to May 2008 and she
held the full-time position of senior designer.

Sue McBRIDEZ + ' 385 AKX L E S
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in designing, manufacturing and
selling apparel with a focus on women’s fashion outerwear such as
coats and jackets, dresses, activewear, pants and jeans.

The Group’s turnover is principally derived from the sales of apparel
products. The Group’s products can be classified into two categories,
namely, private label products and own brand products. Private label
products are those designed and manufactured under the private
labels owned or specified by the Group’s customers, while own brand
products are those designed and manufactured under the Group’s
proprietary labels.

The Group’s has delivered a year of steady growth in revenue and
solid financial performance. The Group’s revenue increased from
approximately HK$360,707,000 in year 2013 to HK$379,715,000
in year 2014, representing an increase of approximately 5.3%. The
steady growth in revenue in the past few years is the result of exertion
of Group’s hardworking and professional team members. The profit
attributable to owners of the Company increased from approximately
HK$13,529,000 in year 2013 to approximately HK$25,679,000 in
year 2014, representing an increase of approximately 89.8%. The
significant increase in profit attributable to owners of the Company
is mainly due to the absence of listing expenses in the year ended
31 December 2014, which were incurred by the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2013, coupled with a steady increase in the
Group’s revenue.

PRIVATE LABEL PRODUCTS

Private label products continued to be the core business of the
Group, contributing to 86.0% (2013: 86.8%) of the total revenue of
the Group for the year. Revenue from private label products increased
by approximately 4.4% to approximately HK$326,680,000 (2013:
HK$313,033,000) while gross profit also increased by 9.2% to
approximately HK$76,647,000 (2013: HK$70,183,000). The gross
profit margin of private label products increased from approximately
22.4% to approximately 23.5% for the year ended 31 December 2014,
primarily due to decrease in price of materials and finished products
purchased from our suppliers as we offered more favourable trade
terms to them, such as shorter credit period.
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OWN BRAND PRODUCTS

Own brand products remains an important driver of our business
growth and experienced a strong growth in 2014. Own brand products
accounted for 14.0% (2013: 13.2%) of the total revenue of the Group
for the year. The revenue as well as the gross profit from own brand
products increased significantly in 2014. For the year 2014, revenue
from own brand products increased by approximately 11.2% to
approximately HK$53,035,000 (2013: HK$47,674,000) while gross
profit also increased by 18.2% to approximately HK$17,440,000 (2013:
HK$14,758,000). The gross profit margin of own brand products
increased from approximately 31.0% to approximately 32.9% for the
year ended 31 December 2014, primarily due to decrease in price of
materials and finished products purchased from our suppliers as we
offered more favourable trade terms to them, such as shorter credit
period.

COST OF SALES

The cost of sales increased by approximately 3.6%, from approximately
HK$275,766,000 to approximately HK$285,628,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2014. The rise in cost of sales was mainly driven
by the increase in our revenue in 2014. On the other hand, decrease in
price of materials and finished products purchased from our suppliers
as we offered more favourable trade terms to them, such as shorter
credit period, mitigated the increase in cost of sales. This resulted in
the rise in cost of sales being in slower pace than increase in revenue.

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

The gross profit increased by approximately HK$9,146,000 or 10.8%
and the gross profit margin increased from approximately 23.5% to
24.8% for the year ended 31 December 2014. The Group’s turnover
is derived from the sales of private label products and own brand
products, and the gross profit and gross profit margin of the Group
were primarily affected by the mix of those of private label products
and own brand products. The increase in the Group’s gross profit
of approximately 10.8% was primarily attributable to (i) increase in
gross profit of both private label products and own brand products in
year ended 31 December 2014 and (i) there was higher proportion
of revenue from own brand products which has higher gross profit
margin.
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OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Other income and gains increased by approximately HK$804,000 or
425.4%, from approximately HK$189,000 to approximately HK$993,000
for the year ended 31 December 2014, which was primarily attributable
to (i) the increase in sample and accessories income by approximately
HK$352,000, and (ii) the increase in bank interest income by
approximately HK$321,000.

CHANGES IN FAIR VALUE OF DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

The Group recorded losses from change in fair value of derivative
financial instruments of approximately HK$242,000, compared to
gains from change in fair value of derivative financial instruments of
approximately HK$1,322,000 recorded in 2013. This was because
(i) the fair value gain from the 3 structured foreign exchange forward
contracts (1 of the 3 contracts expired in July 2014) was very
immaterial as the remaining 2 structured foreign forward contracts were
close to their expiry dates as at 31 December 2014, and (i) we incurred
a loss of approximately HK$242,000 from the foreign exchange
forward contract that was entered into in 2014.

SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Selling and distribution expenses mainly consist of (i) transportation
costs for delivery of the products; (ii) staff cost for our sales
representative; (i) import duty and (iv) rental costs of our showroom.
The selling and distribution expenses incurred in the reporting
period were approximately HK$26,839,000 (2013: HK$22,850,000),
representing an increase of approximately HK$3,989,000 or 17.5%
on year to year basis. The increase in selling and distribution
expenses was primarily attributable to () an increase of approximately
HK$1,627,000 in staff cost for our sales representative; (i) an increase
of approximately HK$1,344,000 in transportation costs for delivery of
the products, both being driven by the rise in revenue in the year; and (jii)
we spent approximately HK$1,031,000 more in the year participating in
more trade fairs and fashion shows in a bid to promote our brand and
seek more potential customers.
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ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Administrative expenses primarily consist of (i) staff costs; (ii) rental
expenses; (iii) bank charges and (iv) depreciation of property, plant
and equipment. The administrative expenses for the year ended
31 December 2014 were HK$36,137,000 (2013: HK$44,464,000),
decreased by approximately 18.7% or HK$8,327,000. The change in
administrative expenses was mainly due to (i) the absence of listing
expenses in the year ended 31 December 2014, while the Group
incurred listing expenses of approximately HK$10,938,000 for the year
ended 31 December 2013; and (i) an increase of approximately 11.5%
or HK$2,351,000 staff cost for the year ended 31 December 2014.

FINANCE COSTS

Finance costs represent interest expenses on the Group’s bank
borrowings and obligations under finance leases. The finance costs
decreased by approximately 61.8% or HK$478,000 from approximately
HK$773,000 in 2013 to approximately HK$295,000 in 2014, primarily
due to decrease in utilisation of banking facilities as a result of
improvement in bank balances during 2014.

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY

The profit attributable to owners of the Company increased from
approximately HK$13,529,000 in year 2013 to approximately
HK$25,679,000 in year 2014, representing an increase of
approximately 89.8%. The significant increase in profit attributable
to owners of the Company is mainly due to the absence of listing
expenses in the year ended 31 December 2014, which were incurred
by the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013, coupled with a
steady increase in the Group’s revenue.
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INVENTORIES

The following table set out a summary of the Group’s inventory
balances as at respective financial position dates below:

FE

Management Discussion and Analysis &% & &f3m & 2 1

TREFIAREEN THZHHEAMN B BT

BESME -

As at

31 December
2014
R=T—NF
+=A=t+—H
HK$’000
FHET

4,201
1,370
14,606

20,177

Raw materials and consumables R R FEM
Work in progress M
Finished goods BIpK M
Inventory turnover days FEREXEH

26

The Group’s inventories increased by approximately HK$1,691,000
or 9.1%, from approximately HK$18,486,000 as at 31 December
2013 to approximately HK$20,177,000 as at 31 December 2014,
and the inventory turnover days slightly increased from 24 days as at
31 December 2013 to 26 days as at 31 December 2014, primarily
because the increase in finished goods inventory of own brand
products by approximately HK$5,130,000 to cope with anticipated
increase in sales of own brands products in the coming year.
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TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES

The following table set out a summary of the Group’s trade and bills
receivables balances as at respective financial position dates below:

BZRUHRERERRE
TREFAEER THEHHHRREAHE
PIEHE R YRR

As at As at

KA ETST o STl 31 December

2014 2013

REZ—NF RNt

ToA=1+—H gy Eaa=

HK$’000 HK$'000

T#ExT T

Trade receivables = E e 59,790 71,048
Bills receivables FEE 3,391 6,587
63,181 77,635

Trade receivables turnover day H 5 EBGRIRAE R 57 72

The Group’s trade and bills receivables decreased by approximately
HK$14,454,000 or 18.6% from approximately HK$77,635,000 as at
31 December 2013 to approximately HK$63,181,000 as at
31 December 2014, as well as trade receivables turnover day
decreased from 72 days as at 31 December 2013 to 57 days as at
31 December 2014, primarily due to early settlement of certain
customers.

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

The Group’s deposits, prepayments and other receivables increased
by approximately HK$18,769,000 or 95.9% from approximately
HK$19,577,000 as at 31 December 2013 to approximately
HK$38,346,000 as at 31 December 2014, primarily due to we placed
more prepayments to cope with anticipated increase in sales in the
coming year.
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TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

The following table set out a summary of the Group’s trade and bills
payables balances as at respective financial position dates below:

EZRNRERENRE
TREBIAKER THIE MR B 20
SR HOR R RIS

Trade payables E SRR
Bills payables JERTRIE

Trade payables turnover day B 5 R IR RE X E

The Group’s trade and bills payables decreased by approximately
HK$4,921,000 or 6.8% from approximately HK$72,712,000 as at
31 December 2013 to approximately HK$67,791,000 as at
31 December 2014, as well as trade payables turnover day decreased
from 78 days as at 31 December 2013 to 67 days as at 31 December
2014, primarily due to our offering of more favourable trade terms,
such as shorter payment day, to our suppliers in order to obtain lower
price for materials and finished goods from our suppliers.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During 2014, the Group maintained a healthy liquidity position,
with working capital financed by both internal resources and bank
borrowings. As at 31 December 2014, pledged bank deposits and
cash and bank balances amounted to approximately HK$69,663,000
(2013: HK$60,457,000). Total interest-bearing borrowings of the
Group as at 31 December 2014 was approximately HK$3,131,000
(2013: HK$9,564,000), of which approximately HK$823,000 (2013:
HK$7,370,000) would be scheduled to repay within one year and all the
remaining interest-bearing borrowings of approximately HK$2,308,000
(2013: HK$2,194,000) would be scheduled to repay after one year. The
current ratio of the Group was approximately 2.22 (2013: 1.78).
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GEARING RATIO

The gearing ratio of the Group, calculated as total interest-bearing
borrowings over total equity, was approximately 2.6% as at
31 December 2014 (2013: 9.8 %).

TREASURY POLICY

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a healthy liquidity
position throughout the period under review. The Group strives
to reduce exposure to credit risk by performing ongoing credit
assessments and evaluations of the financial status of its customers. To
manage liquidity risk, the Board closely monitors the Group’s liquidity
position to ensure that the liquidity structure of the Group’s assets,
liabilities and other commitments can meet its funding requirements
from time to time.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED COMPANIES

There was no material acquisition or disposal of subsidiaries and
affiliated companies during the year ended 31 December 2014.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group derives the majority of its revenue in US$ while substantial
portion of our costs are denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”).
Appreciation of RMB against US$ will therefore directly decrease the
profit margin of the Group if the Group is unable to increase the selling
prices of its products accordingly. If the Group increases the selling
prices of its products as a result of the appreciation of RMB, it may
in turn affect the Group’s competitiveness against other competitors.
To the extent that the Company needs to convert future financing into
RMB for the Group’s operations, appreciation of the RMB against
the relevant foreign currencies would have an adverse effect on the
purchasing power of the RMB amount that the Company would receive
from the conversion.

The exchange rates between RMB and US$ are subject to changes in
the PRC Government’s policies and international political and economic
conditions. Currently, there remains considerable international pressure
on the appreciation of RMB against US$.
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As the appreciation of RMB against US$ has a negative impact on the
Group’s profit margin, during the reporting period, other than the 3
foreign exchange structured forward contracts that were entered into
in previous financial years, the Group entered into 1 foreign exchange
forward contract to hedge against such currency risk. The foreign
exchange forward contract and 1 of the foreign exchange structured
forward contracts expired during the year. Despite the fact that the
Group's reporting currency is HKS, our revenue is mainly denominated
in US$ while substantial portion of our costs are denominated in RMB.
Therefore, the Directors consider that using the RMB/US$ foreign
exchange structured forward contracts as well as RMB/US$ foreign
exchange forward contract could hedge against the currency risk.

For accounting purpose, outstanding foreign exchange structured
forward contracts are stated at fair value in the consolidated statement
of financial position of the Group, and fluctuations of the exchange
rate of RMB/US$ will result in fair value gain/loss of derivative financial
instruments to be recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income of the Group.

In the financial year ended 31 December 2014, the Group recognised
approximately HK$242,000 fair value loss of derivative financial
instruments (2013: gain of HK$1,322,000) arisen from the foreign
exchange forward contract that was entered into in 2014 and the
3 foreign exchange structured forward contracts that were brought
forward from 2013.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 December 2014, the Group did not have any significant
capital commitment (2013: nil).

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had a total of 399 employees
(2013: 389 employees). Total staff costs (including Directors’
emoluments) were approximately HK$55,049,000, as compared to
approximately HK$46,034,000 for the year ended 31 December 2013.
Remuneration is determined with reference to market norms as well as
individual employees’ performance, qualification and experience.
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FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR
CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed under “Comparison of Business Objectives with
Actual Business Progress” in the latter section of this annual report,
there was no specific plan for material investments or capital assets as
at 31 December 2014.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors did not recommend any payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2014,

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM PLACING

On 3 December 2013, shares of the Company were listed on the
GEM by way of placing. The net proceeds from the placing were
approximately HK$35,732,000. The future plans and prospects as
stated in the prospectus of the Company dated 27 November 2013
(the “Prospectus”) were formulated based on the best estimation of
the future market conditions at the time of preparing the Prospectus.
The Directors are mindful of the financial performance of the Group
in engaging actual costs and capital expenditure. The proceeds were
conservatively applied regard to ongoing market conditions.
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COMPARISON OF BUSINESS OBJECTIVES WITH
ACTUAL BESINESS PROGRESS

Further developing the own
brand products operation
E—TERRBAREERED

Business objectives for the
period from 20 November
2013 (the “Latest Practicable
Date”) to 31 December 2014
as stated in the Prospectus
BRERFEH=-Z—=F
+—A=+H (K&7ATEH]
BE-E-NME+=A=+—H
WEKEEZ

Expand the marketing team

to visit, make presentations

to, and develop relationship
with existing and potential
customers of the Group’s own
brand products. Set up new
showroom or expand existing
showrooms in the USA to
display and promote more own
brand products to customers.
EREHESARAERE A m
MBEMBNIRE REEEPEHA
ME R TR IR o REBE
SRS ES BRI B RYIE -
NmEFRRRIEEEZB6 M
B -

Participate in more trade fairs
and fashion shows to increase
the exposure of the brands
owned by the Group.
2EFLEHRETRGER -
RAREE B E mER A
B

ﬁi’% BREBEREBERNY

Actual business progress up to
31 December 2014
BEEZ-Z—ME+=-A=+—8H
NWEREKER

In 2014, we recruited one
experienced and high caliber

sales and marketing staff, as well
as contracted with two external
experienced sales representatives
to promote the our own brand
products to existing and potential
customers.

RZT—WF  BfEFET —BER
EERTRNEHAR - WERAI
e ENHERIEATL - UM
BEREERFEEEEmEER -

During the year, we participated

in more than 10 trade fairs

and fashion shows around the
world, including North America,
Europe and Asia, to promote our
brands awareness. We spent
approximately HK$1,122,000 in
2014 participating in trade fairs
and fashion shows to increase

the exposure of our brands in the
apparel industry, which are vital to
our future growth.

FA - B2 MERH5RE
ehRER - 81FEE  BUNRE
M- BRARIBEEE - BRIV =F
—PUFIEEX1,122,000 B2 INE
HERRER  UIRERERRKE
WAHEE  HRREREWMESE -
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Enhancing the Group’s
manufacturing facilities

BRAEBENEERE

Business objectives for the
period from 20 November
2013 (the “Latest Practicable
Date”) to 31 December 2014
as stated in the Prospectus
BRERMEH-B—=F
+—A=+H (&#%ATRH]
EZE-NE+=ZA=+—H
e =R

Increase inventory of own
brand products in preparation
for increase in demand from
customers.
REEAREERNFE BT
PREr LA TR SkIELERE -

Purchase new production
equipment and machinery to
replace existing manufacturing
facilities and to enhance the
production efficiency and
capacity

i BT A EE AR AR A IR ER
BHERE  UWRSEERER
R

Renovate and refurbish the
existing factory building and
reset the factory layout for more
new production facilities
BEERBHNRELIRAE - 15
T ERR B E R LRERS

Actual business progress up to
31 December 2014
BEEZE-E-NE+=HA=+—H
NEREBER

To cope with anticipated increase
in sales of own brands products

in the coming year, we increased
our own brand inventories by
approximately HK$5,130,000 as

at 31 December 2014, compared
to own brand inventories as at 31
December 2013.
RIERRFIHE B A miEEmeTa s
R BT =F+—-A=+—H
HWEERBEFELER RZZT—HF
TZA=T—HEMEMNREFEL
5,130,000/8 7T °

We purchased additional 15 sets
of production equipment and
machineries in 2014 to enhance
the production capacity and
efficiency.
BMER - HFHINEE1SE
EERRAR AN - DAIR TR R MBUE -

We are now in the progress

of formulating renovation and
refurbishment plans for the existing
factory and factory layout.
HMERRE IR TR EIEHE
BREEETE -
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Group’s design capability
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Business objectives for the
period from 20 November
2013 (the “Latest Practicable
Date”) to 31 December 2014
as stated in the Prospectus
BRERMAH-Z—=F
+—A=+H (&#%ATRHD
E-E-WME+ZA=+—H
WEKBE

Expand the design team
TR AT B B

Develop and create more
fashion apparel samples for
presentation to existing and
potential customers.

I EE R BRERE SRR AR m A
MIREREBEREFPER °

Revamp the proprietary online
product development platform
HNREBN TERRETE

Plan for developing a database
with comprehensive and
updated data and information
of fabric, accessories, fashion
samples, fashion design photos
and other historical information
related to fashion apparel
SRRV EEE - HHAEZER
B BRIk~ I - RS
MBI E R} - RERZREFHERIARE
RS R KR H B B R

Actual business progress up to
31 December 2014
BEZ-E-—mE+-A=t+-A
NEREBER

We are in the progress of recruiting
more experienced and high caliber
design personnel. Although there
were no expansion for design team
in 2014, we recruited an additional
staff in design team in 2015 to
strengthen the design team.
BIEEEE ZE R KR LT LR
FTAT - BERGTEBR - —HF
WHEET - RPN = —RFRRK:
B ERIMNERE T — B 8 TLANSR RS
B

We developed many fashion
apparel samples in 2014 for
presentation to customers. In addition,
we developed 2 websites in the

year, which are http://blancnoir.us/
and http://bebyblancnoir.com/,

to promote the design of our own
brand products.

BN —ZE - FRER SRR K
BmPE PR o FRINE M B
uf (http://blancnoir.us/ &
http://bebyblancnoir.com/) AHEE B
B bR E mERET

We are in the progress of revamp
of the proprietary online product

development platform.
BMIEAREBRE LERAETES

We have been developing

a database system since

2014. The database includes

the information of fabric,
accessories, fashion samples,
fashion design photos, which
facilitates design team to

enhance its capability and
efficiency.

BE_T—mF  RM—BERIEE
o SUREBERE - R BEE
IREVER - FRRETEA - RRETE
iR H gE 1 Rk
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USE OF PROCEEDS

During the period from the Latest Practicable Date as defined in the
Prospectus to 31 December 2014, the net proceeds from Placing were
applied as follows:

FrSRIBEAR

MEETTRS (FERARER) E-F
~mE+=A=+—B  RERERETE
PEA T -

Planned use of
proceeds as

stated in the Actual use of

Prospectus from proceeds from
the Latest the Latest
Practicable Practicable
Date to Date to
31 December 31 December
2014 2014
BRER
it S SR8 FR8RIE
RE#RAITAYE RERAITED
EZ-EZ-MFE E-ET-NF
+=ZA=t—-H t+=ZA=t+-H
MERERZ HERAZ
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Further developing the Group’s own brand #E—SRHEASERE
products operation IEERER 5,000 6,637
Enhancing the Group’s manufacturing facilities 2 B 7N & B ¢ A A= 35 46 5,500 528
Further strengthening the Group’s design E—FINBRAEEL
capability R 3,500 1,992

The business objectives, future plans and planned use of proceeds
as stated in the Prospectus were based on the best estimation and
assumption of future market conditions made by the Group at the time
of preparing the Prospectus while the proceeds were applied based on
the actual development of the Group’s business and the industry.

BRERZPAAEOEREBR - KRGS R
SRENEER SRR ERARERS S
RIRDAEHOBRER REBRASEE - M
FERFEFIRTI AAK B RS RITENER
BRREE -
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Corporate Governance Report

Pursuant to Rule 18.44(2) of the GEM Listing rules, the Board is
pleased to present the corporate governance report for the year ended
31 December 2014.

CODE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of its shareholders and to
enhance corporate value. The Company’s corporate governance
practices are based on the principles and code provision as set out in
the Code on Corporate Governance Practices (“CG code”) in Appendix
15 to the GEM Listing Rules.

Throughout the year, the Company complied with the CG Code with
the exception from the deviation from the code provisions A.1.8 as
explained below:

Under the code provision A.1.8, the Company should arrange
appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action against its
directors. No insurance cover has been arranged for directors up to the
date of this report since the directors take the view that the Company
shall support directors arising from corporate activities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board is primarily responsible for formulating strategies, monitoring
performance and managing risks of the Group. At the same time, it also
has the duty to enhance the effectiveness of the corporate governance
practices of the Group. Under the Board, there are four committees,
namely audit committee, remuneration committee, nomination
committee and corporate governance committee. All these committees
perform their distinct roles in accordance with their respective terms of
reference and assist the Board in supervising certain functions of the
senior management.

THE BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board currently comprises five Directors and their respective roles
are set out as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Hubert Tien (Chairman)
Farzad Gozashti

TEERRE

RIFBIER ETRANE 184416 EF
RAEZHREE_T—NF+_A=+—H1
FEMTEEARE -

TEERERTR
ARAB—ABNN R RKEZ BEERIA
RIEERFRERWIRS B EEE - KRR
EERERERIIERBIFR LA RIMEE15
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B SR Al B 7 AINERS
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EEAREARREREE T REFRMX
R BHBEARESAHGEALAESTLHREE
REg o

EERERE

EFZSIZ2ARFERK  HERTRER
AEEWER - HEREE - ETAAEERS
AREBMEEAFROUE - EFG TRE
HZ8g AEZZBE HWZBE &
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Farzad Gozashti
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Tang Shu Pui, Simon
Tang Tsz Kai, Kevin
Lai Man Sing

Biographies of all directors are listed in Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management set out on pages 10 to 14.

The Board is primarily responsible for overseeing and supervising the
management of the business affairs and the overall performance of
the Group. The Board sets the Group’s values and standards and
ensures that the requisite financial and human resources support are in
place for the Group to achieve its objectives. The functions performed
by the Board include but not limited to formulating the Group’s
business strategies, reviewing the Group’s financial performance
and results, deciding all significant financial and operational issues
and monitoring; reviewing the Group’s internal control system and
corporate governance; and all other functions reserved to the Board
under the Company’s articles of association. In addition, the Board
delegates to the Group’s management certain functions include the
implementation of general daily operation, strategies approved by
the Board, the implementation of internal control procedures and
ensuring of compliance with relevant requirements and other rules and
regulations. The Board members have no financial, business, family or
other material/ relevant relationships with each other. All the Directors
carry out their duties in good faith and in compliance with applicable
laws and regulations, taking decisions objectively and acting in the
interests of the Company and its shareholders at all times.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

In compliance with Rules 5.05(1) and (2) of the GEM Listing Rules,
the Company has appointed sufficient number of Independent Non-
executive Directors (the “INEDs”) with at least one of them having
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise. The INEDs, together with the executive
Directors, ensure that the Board prepares its financial and other
mandatory reports in strict compliance with the relevant standards.
The Company has received an annual confirmation of independence
from each of the INEDs and believes that their independence is in
compliance the GEM Listing Rules.
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Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for a period of three years commencing from
22 November 2013 and will continue thereafter until terminated in
accordance with the terms of the service contract. Each of the INEDs
has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company on 22
November 2013. The letter of appointment for each of the INEDs is for
an initial term of three years unless terminated by either party giving at
least one month’s notice in writing.

In accordance with the articles of association, one-third of the Directors
are subject to retirement by rotation or, if their number is not three or
a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-
third shall retire from the office and being eligible offer themselves for
re-election provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF MARKETING OFFICER

Mr. Hubert Tien, the Chairman, has provided leadership for the Board
and ensured that the Board works effectively and that all important
issues are discussed in a timely manner. Mr. Farzad Gozashti, the
Executive Director and chief marketing officer of the Group, manage
the Company’s day-to-day businesses and implement major strategies
and policies of the Company. The responsibilities of the Chairman and
the chief marketing officer are clearly set out in their respective letters
of appointment. The positions of the Chairman and the chief marketing
officer are held by separate individuals so as to maintain an effective
segregation of duties.

BOARD MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETINGS

The Board meets regularly for reviewing and approving the financial
and operating performance, and considering and approving the
overall strategies and policies of the Company. Additional meetings
are held when significant events or important issues are required to be
discussed and resolved.

The Company held 5 board meetings, and 1 annual general meeting
(*AGM”) and 1 extraordinary general meeting (‘EGM”) throughout the
year.
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The attendance records of individual Director are set out as follows:

Number of
board meetings
attended/eligible

SERHFECELEIIIT

Number of
EGM attended/

Number of
AGM attended/

to attend eligible to attend eligible to attend
EEg RERBF BRER4F5
gabE REHE REHE
EEREERE EEREERE SERERERE
EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS HITES
Hubert Tien (Chairman) HBER () 5/5 1/1 1/1
Farzad Gozashti Farzad Gozashti 1/5 01 0/1
INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS BIAFHITES
Tang Shu Pui, Simon B RS S 4/5 11 0/1
Tang Tsz Kai, Kevin ISR 5/5 1/1 11
Lai Man Sing RYE 4/5 1/1 0/1
AUDIT COMMITTEE EREES

The Board has established an audit committee on 22 November 2013
with written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code as
set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules. The audit committee
consists of three independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lai
Man Sing, Mr. Tang Tsz Kai, Kevin and Mr. Tang Shu Pui, Simon. Mr. Lai
Man Sing is the chairman of the audit committee. The audited annual
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 have been
reviewed by the audit committee members who have provided advice

and comments thereon.

The main duties of the audit committee include, among others:

- monitoring the integrity of the Company’s financial statements,
annual, quarterly and interim financial reports, and to review
significant financial reporting judgments and accounting policies

contained in them;

- reviewing and examining the effectiveness of internal control

measure;
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- responsible for making recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the external auditor,
and to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of
the external auditor;

- reporting the finding and recommendations to the Board on a
regular basis

Throughout the year, four audit committee meetings were held to
review and discuss with the management of the Company and the
external auditors the accounting principles and practices adopted by
the Group, as well as internal controls and other financial reporting
matters. The attendance records of individual committee members are
set out below:

Number of meeting
attended/eligible to attend

Lai Man Sing 4/4
Tang Tsz Kai, Kevin 4/4
Tang Shu Pui, Simon 4/4

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Board has established a remuneration committee on 22 November
2013 with written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code
as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules. The remuneration
committee consists of one Executive Director, namely Mr. Hubert Tien,
and three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Tang Shu
Pui, Simon, Mr. Tang Tsz Kai, Kevin and Mr. Lai Man Sing. Mr. Tang
Shu Pui, Simon is the chairman of the remuneration committee.

The main duties of the remuneration committee include, among others:

- formulating remuneration policy for approval by the Board,
which shall take into consideration factors such as salaries paid
by comparable companies, time commitment, employment
conditions, and responsibilities, and individual performance of the
directors, senior management, and the general staff;

- ensuring none of the Directors determine their own remuneration.
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Throughout the year, one meeting of the remuneration committee
was held to, amongst others, review and approve the remuneration
packages of the Directors and senior management of the Company.
The attendance records of individual committee members are as
follows:

Number of meeting
attended/eligible to attend

Tang Shu Pui, Simon 1Al
Hubert Tien ”
Lai Man Sing 11
Tang Tsz Kai, Kevin 11
NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Board has established a nomination committee on 22 November
2013 with written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code
as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules. The nomination
committee consists of one Executive Director, namely Mr. Hubert Tien,
and three Independent Non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Lai Man
Sing, Mr. Tang Shu Pui, Simon, and Mr. Tang Tsz Kai, Kevin. Mr. Lai
Man Sing is the chairman of the nomination committee.

The main duties of the nomination committee include, among others:

- reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board;

— make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating
to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors.

= identify suitable and qualified individuals to become Board
members.
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Throughout the year, one meeting of the nomination committee was
held and the attendance records of individual committee members are
as follows:

Number of Meetings
attended/eligible to attend

Lai Man Sing 11
Hubert Tien 11
Tang Shu Pui, Simon i7al
Tang Tsz Kai, Kevin 1/1

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

The Board has established a corporate governance committee on 22
November 2013 with written terms of reference in compliance with
the CG Code as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules. The
corporate governance committee consists of one Executive Director,
namely Mr. Hubert Tien, three Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely, Mr. Tang Tsz Kai, Kevin, Mr. Lai Man Sing and Mr. Tang Shu
Pui, Simon, and the Company Secretary, namely, Chan Ka Yu. Mr. Tang
Tsz Kai, Kevin is the chairman of the corporate governance committee.

The main duties of the corporate governance committee include,
among others:

- develop and review Group’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and make recommendations to the Board;

- review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management;

- review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

- develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors; and

- review the Group’s compliance with the Code and disclosure in
the Corporate Governance Report.
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Throughout the year, one meeting of the corporate governance
committee was held and the attendance records of individual
committee members are as follows:

Number of Meetings
attended/eligible to attend

Tang Tsz Kai, Kevin 1/1
Hubert Tien 11
Tang Shu Pui, Simon i7al
Lai Man Sing 11
Chan Ka Yu 11

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules as the code of conduct for dealing in securities of the Company
by the Directors (the “Required Standard of Dealings”). The Company
has confirmed, having made specific enquiry of the Directors, all the
Directors have complied with the Required Standard of Dealings
throughout the year.

AUDITOR REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2014, remuneration payable to the
auditor of the Group is approximately HK$570,000 for audit services.

INTERNAL CONTROL

Our Group highly values the importance of internal control and risk
management for the smooth running of its business. The Board is
responsible for maintaining a sound and effective internal control
system in order to safeguard the interests of the shareholders and
the assets of the Company against unauthorised use or disposition,
ensuring maintenance of proper books and records for the provision of
reliable financial information, and ensuring compliance with the relevant
rules and regulations.

The Board set up a corporate governance committee in 22 November
2018. The corporate governance committee is closely monitoring the
effectiveness of our internal control system and report to the Board
regularly. The corporate governance committee shall report any non-
compliance issues to the Board immediately once any non-compliance
issues are noted.
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The Board is of the view that the Group’s internal control system
is effective and adequate. The Board will continue to assess the
effectiveness of internal control system by considering reviews and
recommendations made by the corporate governance committee and
senior management.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparation of the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2014, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and the Group’s results and cash flows for the year then
ended and properly prepared on going concern basis in accordance
with the applicable statutory requirements and accounting standards.
The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties which may
affect the Company’s business or cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company,
shareholders holding not less than 10% of the paid up capital of the
Company can convene an EGM by written requisition to the Board
or the Secretary of the Company. In addition, shareholders can raise
any questions relating to published information and latest strategic
plan of the Group with the Directors. Shareholders are encouraged
to participate in general meetings or to appoint proxies to attend and
vote at meetings for and on their behalf if they are unable to attend the
meetings. Shareholders can also submit enquiries to the management
and send proposals to be put forward at shareholders’ meeting to the
Board or senior management by sending e-mails to ir@runwayglobal.com
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Board recognises the importance of good communications with
all shareholders. The Company believes that maintaining a high level
of transparency is a key to enhance investor relations. The Company
is committed to a policy of open and timely disclosure of corporate
information to its shareholders and public investors.

The Company maintains various communication channels with its
shareholders and the investment public to ensure that they are kept
abreast of the Company’s latest news and development. The Company
updates its shareholders on its development, financial results and major
events through its annual, interim and quarterly reports. All published
information is promptly uploaded to the website of the Company at
www.runwayglobal.com.
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The Board is pleased to present their report together with the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2014.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in designing, manufacturing and
trading of apparels. Details of the principal activities of the Company
and its subsidiaries are set out in note 17 to the financial statements.
There was no significant change in the nature of the Group’s principal
activities during the year.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by geographical
areas is set out in the note 6 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2014 and
the state of affairs of the Company and the Group as at 31 December
2014 are set out in the financial statements on pages 50 to 128.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2014.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the past four years is set out in the financial summary on
page 6 of this annual report. This summary does not form part of the
audited financial statements in this annual report.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company and of the
Group during the year are set out in note 28 to the financial statements
and in the consolidated statement of change in equity, respectively in
this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2014, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution to equity shareholders, comprising share premium and
contributed surplus, amounted to approximately HK$92,440,000.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

The Company was successfully listed on 3 December 2013. The
proceeds from the Company’s issuance of 150,000,000 new shares
at the time of the listing amounted to approximately HK$35,732,000,
net of underwriting fees and other listing expenses. For further details
of the use of proceeds, please refer to the section headed “Future
Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus. As of the date of this
report, the net proceeds have been used as set out in Use of Proceeds
in page 28 of this annual report and are placed on short-term interest
bearing deposits with authorised financial institutions.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of Group
during the year are set out in note 15 to the financial statements of this
annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the year
are set out in note 27 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association, or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31
December 2014.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group’s major customers and suppliers are as
follows:

Sales

— The largest customer 32.6%
— The total of five largest customers 91.9%
Purchases

— The largest supplier 22.8%
— The total of five largest suppliers 44.7%
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2014 and up to the date of this annual report are:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Hubert Tien (Chairman)
Farzad Gozashti

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Tang Shu Pui, Simon
Tang Tsz Kai, Kevin
Lai Man Sin

In accordance with articles 84(1) to 85 of the Company’s articles of
association, Farzad Gozashti and Tang Tsz Kai, Kevin will retire by
rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received annual written confirmation from each of its
Independent Non-executive Directors in respect of their independence
with relevant requirements of the GEM Listing Rule and all Independent
Non-executive Directors are still being considered to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for an initial term of three years commencing from 22
November 2013 and renewable automatically until terminated by not
less than three months’ notice in writing served by either party on the
other expiring at the end of the initial term or any time thereafter. Each
of the Independent Non-Executive Directors has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company on 22 November 2013. Each letter of
appointment is for an initial term commencing on the date of the letter
of appointment and shall continue thereafter subject to a maximum
of three years unless terminated by either party giving at least one
month’s notice in writing. In accordance with the articles of association,
one-third of the Directors are subject to retirement by rotation or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to
but not less than one-third shall retire from the office and being eligible
offer themselves for re-election provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
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None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the annual general
meeting has entered into any service contract with the Company which
is not determinable by the Company within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 10 to 14 of this annual
report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in
any contract of significance to business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party the year ended 31
December 2014.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2014, the interests of the Directors and chief
executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”))
which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed to
have under such provisions of the SFO), or were required pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein,
or were required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange were as
follows:
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T - = O
Long positions in Shares of the Company RAEXTRBHEFR
Percentage of
Name Capacity/nature of interest Number of shares interests
#H B3, @MY BREEAR EsEs
Mr. Hubert Tien Interest in controlled corporation (Note 1) 225,000,000 37.5%
HEZ A e LR (e 1)
Mr. Farzad Gozashti Interest in controlled corporation (Note 2) 225,000,000 37.5%
Farzad Gozashti 54 RiEEE g (HiE2)
Notes: Bi5E
1. These shares are held by All Divine Limited, which is wholly owned by Mr. Hubert 1. Z 5 M%7 B All Divine Limited 354 © 22 RIHA
Tien. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Hubert Tien is deemed to be interested in the HEDTELERE - REZHRBAEED -
225,000,000 shares under the SFO. FH B 20 5 A 4 AR A 45 A 225,000,000 A% AR 19 #)
HERS o
2. These shares are held by Fortune Zone Global Limited, which is wholly owned by 2. 5% % B% 19 A Fortune Zone Global Limited 4

Mr. Farzad Gozashti. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Farzad Gozashti is deemed to be
interested in the 225,000,000 shares under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which would have to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and short positions which he was taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or which was
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2014, so far as it was known by or otherwise
notified to any Directors or the chief executive of the Company, the
particulars of the corporations or persons (other than a Director or the
chief executive of the Company) which had 5% or more interests in
the Shares and the underlying Shares as recorded in the register kept
under section 336 of the SFO were as follows:
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Long positions in Shares of the Company RARTRRMDHEFR
Percentage of
Name Capacity/nature of interest Number of shares interests
®H B3, MY BREEAR EzEo
All Divine Limited Beneficial owner 225,000,000 37.5%
All Divine Limited BB A
Fortune Zone Global Limited Beneficial owner 225,000,000 37.5%
Fortune Zone Global Limited EnEAA
Ms. Sallie Gozashti Interest of spouse (Note 1) 225,000,000 37.5%
Sallie Gozashti Zz+ fetsiEss (FYat1)
Notes: Bi5E -
1. As Fortune Zone Global Limited is wholly and beneficial owned by Mr. Farzad - F#Fortune Zone Global Limited i Farzad

Gozashti, Ms. Sallie Gozashti, being the spouse of Mr. Farzad Gozashti, is deemed
to be interested in the 225,000,000 shares held by Fortune Zone Global Limited
under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2014, the Directors were
not aware of any other persons/entities (other than the Directors and
chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company, its Group members
or associated corporations which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The remuneration committee was established for reviewing and
determining the remuneration and compensation packages of the
Directors with reference to their responsibilities, workload, the time
devoted to the Group and the performance of the Group. The Directors
may also receive options to be granted under a share option scheme.
The Company has conditionally adopted a share option scheme. The
details of the share option scheme are set out in the paragraph headed
“Share Option Scheme” below.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme enables the Company to grant options to
any full-time or part-time employee of the Company or any member of
the Group (the “Eligible Participant”) as incentives or rewards for their
contributions to the Group, the Company conditionally adopted a share
option scheme (the “Scheme”) on 22 November 2013 whereby the
Board are authorised, at their absolute discretion and subject to the
terms of the Scheme, to grant options to subscribe for the shares of
the Company to the Eligible Participant. The Scheme will be valid and
effective for a period of ten years commencing from the Listing Date.

As at the date of this report, the total number of shares available for
issue under the Scheme is 60,000,000 shares, representing 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company.

Upon acceptance of an option to subscribe for shares granted
pursuant to the Scheme (the “Option”), the Eligible Participant shall
pay HK$ 1.00 to the Company by way of consideration for the grant.
The Option will be offered for acceptance for a period of 21 days from
the date on which the Option is granted. The subscription price for the
shares subject to Options will be a price determined by the Board and
notified to each participant and shall be the highest of: () the closing
price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet on the date of grant of the Option, which must be a day on
which trading of shares take place on the Stock Exchange (the “Trading
Day”); (i) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the 5 Trading Days immediately
preceding the date of grant of the Options; and (jii) the nominal value
of a share. For the purpose of calculating the subscription price, in the
event that on the date of grant, the Company has been listed on the
Stock Exchange for less than 5 Trading Days, the placing price shall be
used as the closing price for any Trading Day falling within the period
before the Listing Date.
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The Company shall be entitled to issue options, provided that the total
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the Scheme does not exceed 10% of the shares in
issue from the listing date. The Company may at any time refresh such
limit, subject to the shareholders’ approval and issue of a circular in
compliance with the GEM Listing Rules, provided that the total number
of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under all the share option schemes
of the Company does not exceed 30% of the shares in issue at the
time. An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Scheme at any time during a period as the Board may determine
which shall not exceed ten years from the date of grant subject to
the provisions of early termination thereof. Since the adoption of the
Scheme and during the year, no share option has been granted,
exercised, lapsed or cancelled, and as at 31 December 2014, no share
options under the Scheme were outstanding.

CONNECTED AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the connected and related party transactions for the reporting
period are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements
of this annual report. The connected and related party transactions
are exempted from the reporting, announcement and independent
shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 18 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

None of the Directors or substantial shareholders of the Company or
any of their respective associates has engaged in any business that
competes or may compete with the business of the Group or has any
other conflict of interests with the Group during the year.

COMPLIANCE ADVISER’S INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2014, except for the compliance adviser’s
agreement entered into between the Company and Messis Capital
Limited, the Company’s compliance adviser, on 26 November 2013,
neither the Company’s compliance adviser nor its directors, employees
or associates had any interest in the share capital of the Company or
any member of the Group (including options or rights to subscribe for
such securities) as notified by the Company’s compliance adviser.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of
this report. The Company has maintained a sufficient public float in
compliance with Rule 18.08B of the GEM Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report detailed corporate governance report is set out in pages 29 to
38 in this annual report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2014 have been audited by BDO Limited, who shall retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. A resolution for the re-appointment of BDO Limited
as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

By order of the Board
Runway Global Holdings Company Limited

Hubert Tien
Chairman
16 March 2015
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B A RS

IBDO

BEE 1 +85222188288
{#H : +85228152239

Tel : +8522218 8288
Fax: +852 28152239
www.bdo.com.hk

25t Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central
Hong Kong

EATHER11158
Fk&H2518

www.bdo.com.hk

To the shareholders of Runway Global Holdings Company Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Runway
Global Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 50 to 128, which comprise the
consolidated and company statements of financial position as at 31
December 2014, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and
a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of our engagement,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued) B #ZE MR E (&)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (Continueq)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation of the consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness
of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2014 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Wong Kwok Wai

Practising Certificate Number PO6047

Hong Kong, 16 March 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

SEEEWER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE—ZF—NF+_A=+—HILFE

Notes
BosE

Revenue A 7
Cost of sales SHE AR
Gross profit EF
Other income and gains EMUA R 7
Changes in fair value of derivative PTEERT AN

financial instruments NFEZE) 21
Selling and distribution expenses HERDIHER
Administrative expenses TR
Finance costs REE PR 8
Profit before income tax MRET BB ADER 9
Income tax expense FrS R i
Profit for the year attributable to RATBEEA

owners of the Company ELFEERT
Other comprehensive income, RAREEAEMEM

net of tax, attributable to EENE (BRBR)

owners of the Company
Item that may be reclassified ATREAEHIEZE

subsequently to profit or loss: EEWIER
Exchange (loss)/gain on translation of MEBINERG TR

financial statements of HEEN, (B18) Wk

foreign operations
Total comprehensive income for the RATEEAEBRLEE

year attributable to owners of ZHEKZETE

the Company
Earning per share attributable to KATEE AEM

owners of the Company BRER 14

Basic and diluted earnings
per share (HK cents)

BREAREERN GBIL)

2014
HK$’000
TR

379,715

(285,628)

94,087

993

(242)

(26,839)

(36,137)

(295)

31,567

(5,888)

2013
HK$'000
TAT

360,707

(275,766)

84,941

189

1,322

(22,850)

(44,464)

(773)

18,365

(4,836)

13,529

723

14,252

2.93
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e BB

RZZE—NF+=—A=+—H

As at 31 December 2014

Notes
Pt

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - BE K 15
Payments for leasehold land held for LR T HEA R/

own use under operating leases AE LR 16
Current assets REBEE
Inventories BB 18
Trade and bills receivables B 5 EWGRIA MR R 19
Deposits, prepayments and B BERKE

other receivables H b e RIE 20
Derivative financial instruments PTEEmMIA 21
Pledged bank deposits DR ITIER 22
Cash and bank balances Re RRITHET 23
Current liabilities REIAE
Trade and bills payables B 5 e 5RIA R E R 24
Accruals, other payables and TRIRER - HMER

receipts in advance RIE R TEWGRIA 25
Interest-bearing borrowings FFEEE 26
Provision for taxation FRIE R
Net current assets REEEFE

Total assets less current liabilities

HEERRBAE

2014
HK$’000
TR

20,177
63,181

38,346
129
9,835
59,828

191,496

67,791
15,083
2,252
1,260
86,386

105,110

123,648

2013
HK$'000
TAT

17,270
2,129
19,399
18,486
77,635
19,5677
1,396
9,420

51,037

177,551

72,712
17,178
9,392
231
99,513

78,038

97,437

51



52

Runway Global Holdings Company Limited

Annual Report 2014

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued) =& B #&iRZ (&)

As at 31 December 2014 R -Z—MNFE+-A=+—H

Notes
BosE
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Interest-bearing borrowings TEEE 26
Net assets EEFE
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to KATEE AELER
owners of the Company
Share capital [ 27
Reserves e 28
Total equity R
On behalf of the Board REEFE

Hubert Tien
HeEEZh

Director
EE

Farzad Gozashti
Farzad Gozashti

Director
EE

2014
HK$’000
TR

879

122,769

6,000
116,769

122,769

2013
HK$'000
TAT

172

97,265

6,000
91,265

97,265
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Statement of Financial Position

As at 31 December 2014

Notes
BosE

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries RETEB A BRI 17
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments SEENEN 20
Amount due from a subsidiary JE Y — R B B~ A Fk I8 17
Cash and bank balances R MIRITHETT 23
Current liabilities RBAE
Other payables H AT 50E 25
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEAT BB A RIZIA 17
Net current assets REBEERE
Total assets less current BREERRBER

liabilities/Net assets EEFE
EQUITY =
Share capital [N 27
Reserves i 28
Total equity AR

On behalf of the Board REREZEES

Hubert Tien
g2

Director
E

Farzad Gozashti
Farzad Gozashti

Director
£

AR R

RZZE—NF+=—A=+—H

2014
HK$’000
TR

2013
HK$'000
TAT

63,603

230
38,487
38,717

342

2,716

3,058

35,659

99,262

6,000

93,262

99,262
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
REEREER

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HZE—ZF—NF+_A=+—HILFE

Share Share Merger ~ Statutory Translation  Retained
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total
RE  RHRE ANHE  AERE  RERE  REEA a%
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
T TiEn FiEn T T TEn FiEn
(note 28(a)  (note 28(b)  (note 28(c)  (note 28(d))
(Mietose)  (Wiskosio)) (MisEosi)  (Mizkos()

At1January 2013 R=E-ZE-F-A 3,008 - - 1,235 5465 47,025 56,733
Profit for the year R - - - - - 13529 13,529
Other comprehensive income Eft2EhE
- Exchange gan on translation of financiel - AE BN EBEBRRNE A&

statements of foreign operations - - - - 723 - 723
Total comprehensive income for the year  £E2ENHAL - - - - 723 13,529 14,252

Proft distribution prior to the listing (note 13) ~ EFATENARIZR (¥ 13) - -

Arising from the Reorganisation (note 27(c) ~ REEAE (Ris27(0)) (2,989) -
Capitalisation issue (note 27(c]) BT (Wikor) 4480 4,480) - - - - -
Share issued on placing, net of listing REEREARG - BB LARR

expenses (note 27(e) (Mrore) 1500 45170 - - - - 48810
Transactions with owners RERAZRS 2,092 40690 2,088 - - (2030 26280
Proftt appropriation to reserve BEENRT - - - 484 - (484) -

At 31 December 2013 and 1 January 2014 R-F-=%+-B=+-H
A

k-2-BE-A-
Proft for the year EEEH
Other comprehensive income HrdELE
- Exchange loss on translation of fnencial - REIESN EBEERR
statements of foreign operations HELEE

Total comprehensive income for the year  £E2FlEEE

Profit appropriation to reserve BARENEH

At 31 December 2014 R-E-ME+-R=1-A 122,769
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended 31 December 2014 HZE—F

GERTRER

—MEFZHA=T—HLEFE

2014 2013
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
s FExT FAT
Cash flows from operating activities REZLETHNESHE
Profit before income tax [ B 1S %5 i v ) 18,365
Adjustments for: FRNIESEEE RS
Bank interest income RATHBUA 7 (56)
Interest expenses FEFMAEZ 8 773
Amortisation of payments for leasehold REERNTHIES AL
land held for own use under FH & 1 < R 5
operating leases 9 54
Depreciation of property, Y - WEREEITE
plant and equipment 9 2,668
Gain on disposals of property, HEDE - WE LEBEWRE
plant and equipment 9 (©)
Changes in fair value of derivative TESRMTENRFEES
financial instruments (1,322)
Operating profit before working ZBESEBATLEEF
capital changes 33,830 20,473
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FE (GEm) md (1,730) 9,045
Decrease/(increase) in trade E 5P A K RN R
and bills receivables A () 14,447 (28,030)
Increase in deposits, prepayments &é FEAFR R E A FE UK
and other receivables FRIBIENN (18,939) (5,723)
Decrease in trade and bills payables B 5 e 5008 N e IR A (4,783) (1,374)
Decrease in accruals, other payables TEIRRER - HMEN IR
and receipts in advance M IBMGRIE R (2,082) (3,783)
Settlement of derivative financial PTESBEIT AKEFE
instruments, net 1,025 1,412
Cash generated from/(used in) operations ~ 4&:&Fr1S, (FTA) IRE 21,768 (7,980)
Income tax paid B ATSH (4,855) (6,950)
Net cash generated from/(used in) LEEBRE S (FrA)
operating activities HE&FE (14,930)
Cash flows from investing activities REREZTHNRESRE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEE 3 « &= MK E (396) (1,278)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEME - HE M REFTEHIE
plant and equipment = 54
Increase in pledged bank deposits B IRER I TIF U8 b0 (433) (540)
Increase in time deposit TE HATF SR8 00 (2,527) \
Interest received 2HFILE 377 56
Net cash used in investing activities BEEZHRARS TR (2,979) (1,708)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued) %=

For the year ended 31 December 2014 #HE—-ZF

BRERER 8)

—HET—A=+—HLFE

Notes
BosE
Cash flows from financing activities REMETHNRESRE
Net proceeds from issue of ordinary shares fit & 2877 @ AR Y P15 30 T8
on placing, net of listing expenses FEE MR ETRX 27(e)
Dividend paid 2RI E
Interest paid BAFLE
Decrease in amounts due to directors BN EEFIER
Proceeds of interest-bearing borrowings S EEEmRERIE
Repayments of interest-bearing borrowings (€&t 88
Net cash (used in)/generated from BEES (FTA) B
financing activities HeFE
Net increase in cash and cash RERRESEEEE GNFE
equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents FNREPRESEEER
at beginning of the year
Effect of foreign exchange rates, net [ 2R S 2R R
Cash and cash equivalents ERBESNREEEER
at end of the year
Analysis of balances of cash ReRBELLEER 258
and cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances as stated KRB RRET 2
in statement of financial position Be MRTTEE
Time deposit with original maturity FREHAHA=@AN L2
of more than three months TEHATF 3K 23

2014

HK$’000

FTHET

(7,353)

(7,648)

59,828

(2,527)

57,301

2013
HK$'000
TAT

46,670
(20,390)
(773)
(2,526)
139,765
(132,679)

30,067

13,429

37,550
58

51,037

51,037

51,037
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Notes to the Financial Statements

GENERAL

Runway Global Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability
in the Cayman Islands on 19 June 2013. The address of the
registered office and principal place of business of the Company
is disclosed in the section headed “Corporate Information” in the
annual report. The Company’s shares have been listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) since 3 December
2013 (the “Listing”).

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally engaged in
manufacturing and trading of apparels.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2014
were approved for issue by the board of directors on 16 March
2015.

PRSI MR

31 December 2014 —Z—N&E+-HF=+—H

ARER
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—E—=FXATNhBEHERSH
R BEFR R BRAT - ARRIA
FE R A R T 2 B B
BERAFRIAAIER] —&fi- AR
AMBRHER-_E—=ZF+=-A=H
RIEBBEEZSMBRAT ([E
Frl) BlZEMR b (T L)) -

RRABH—EREZEBR AR R A
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ERKRNBLERE S °
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31 December 2014 —Z—M&E+-F=+—H

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

2.1

2.2

Adoption of amendments to HKFRSs — First
effective on 1 January 2014

In the current year, the Group has applied the amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) that are first effective and
relevant for the Group’s financial statements for the annual
period beginning on 1 January 2014.

Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial
Liabilities

Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment entities

HKFRS 12 and

HKAS 27 (2011)

HK(FRIC) - Int 21 Levies

The adoption of these new HKFRSs had no material impact
on how the results and financial positions for the current
and prior periods have been prepared and presented.

New/amended HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective

The following new/revised HKFRSs, potentially relevant to

the Group’s financial statements, have been issued, but are

not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the

Group.

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements
2010-2012 Cycle?

2. RMEBH BB EEA

([ERMBREER )
21 RATBYBREEL

2.2
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

2.2 New/amended HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective continueq)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HKFRSs (Amendments)

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 27

HKFRS 9 (2014)

Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKFRS 10,

HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 15

or after 1 July 2014

Annual Improvements
2011-2013 Cycle'

Annual Improvements
2012-2014 Cycle®

Clarification of
Acceptable Method
of Depreciation®

Equity Method in
Separate Financial
Statements®

Financial Instruments®

Disclosure Initiative®

Investment Entities:
Applying the
Consolidation
Exception®

Revenue from
Contracts with
Customers*

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014

Effective for annual periods beginning, or transactions occurring, on

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018
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31 December 2014 —Z—M&E+-F=+—H

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING 2. R &8 &% 8| & £ A
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued) (EEMHHREER]D
(%)

2.2 New/amended HKFRSs that have been 2.2 EEMEERERNH

issued but are not yet effective continueq)

Amendments to HKAS 16 — Clarification of Acceptable
Method of Depreciation

The amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit the use of a
revenue-based depreciation method for items of property,
plant and equipment as the standard clarifies the principle
that revenue reflects a pattern of economic benefits that are
generated from operating business (of which the asset is
part) rather than the economic benefits that are consumed
through the use of the asset.

HKFRS 9 (2014) — Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets. Debt instruments
that are held within a business model whose objective is
to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash flows
(the business model test) and that have contractual terms
that give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding
(the contractual cash flow characteristics test) are generally
measured at amortised cost. Debt instruments that meet
the contractual cash flow characteristics test are measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI”) if the objective of the entity’s business model is
both to hold and collect the contractual cash flows and to
sell the financial assets. Entities may make an irrevocable
election at initial recognition to measure equity instruments
that are not held for trading at FVTOCI. All other debt and
equity instruments are measured at fair value through profit
or loss (“FVTPL”).
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #%#& M7t

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

2.2 New/amended HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective continueq)

HKFRS 9 (2014) - Financial Instruments (Continued)

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment model
for all financial assets not measured at FVTPL replacing the
incurred loss model in HKAS 39 and new general hedge
accounting requirements to allow entities to better reflect
their risk management activities in financial statements.

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition, classification and
measurement requirements for financial liabilities from HKAS
39, except for financial liabilities designated at FVTPL,
where the amount of change in fair value attributable to
change in credit risk of the liability is recognised in other
comprehensive income unless that would create or enlarge
an accounting mismatch. In addition, HKFRS 9 retains
the requirements in HKAS 39 for derecognition of financial
assets and financial liabilities.

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue recognition
framework. The core principle of the framework is that an
entity should recognise revenue to depict the transfer of
promised goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods and services. HKFRS
15 supersedes existing revenue recognition guidance
including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction
Contracts and related interpretations.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

2.2 New/amended HKFRSs that have been

issued but are not yet effective continueq)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5 steps approach
to revenue recognition:

e Step 1:  Identify the contract(s) with a customer

e Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the
contract

e Step 3:  Determine the transaction price

e Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation

e Step 5:  Recognise revenue when each performance
obligation is satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular revenue
related topics that may change the current approach taken
under HKFRS. The standard also significantly enhances the
qualitative and quantitative disclosures related to revenue.

The directors of the Company anticipate that all of the
pronouncements will be adopted in the Group’s accounting
policy for the first period beginning after the effective date
of the pronouncement and are currently assessing the
impact of other new and amended HKFRSs upon initial
application. So far, it is preliminarily concluded that the
initial application of these new and amended HKFRSs is not
expected to have a material impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #%#& M7t

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (continued)

2.3 New Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
provisions relating to the preparation of
financial statements

The Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, Cap. 622 will affect
the presentation and disclosures of certain information in
the consolidated financial statements for the year ending
31 December 2015.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs, which collective terms include all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by
the HKICPA. The financial statements also include the applicable
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of
the Stock Exchange.

The financial statements have been prepared under historical
cost convention, except for derivative financial instruments which
are stated at fair values.

It should be noted that accounting estimates and assumptions
are used in the preparation of the financial statements. Although
these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge
and judgement of current events and actions, actual results may
ultimately differ from those estimates. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the financial statements are
disclosed in note 5.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (continue)

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
(“HK$”), which is also the functional currencies of the Company.
All values are rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise indicated.

Pursuant to a group reorganisation completed on 22 November
2013 (the “Reorganisation”) in preparation for the Listing, the
Company became the holding company of the companies then
comprising the Group. Since the Company and the companies
then comprising the Group were under common control of
the controlling shareholders of the Company (the “Controlling
Shareholders”) both before and after the completion of the
Reorganisation, the Reorganisation was accounted for using
merger method of accounting.

The consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2013 include the results and cash flows of all
companies then comprising the Group from the earliest date
presented or since the date when the subsidiaries first came
under the common control of the Controlling Shareholders, where
this is a shorter period. The consolidated statement of financial
position of the Group as at 1 January 2013 has been prepared to
present the assets and liabilities of the Group using the existing
carrying values from the Controlling Shareholders’ perspective.
No adjustments are made to reflect fair values, or recognise any
new assets or liabilities as a result of the Reorganisation.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2013
prepared on the above basis present more fairly the results and
the state of affairs of the Group as a whole.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #%#& M7t

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of
the financial statements are summarised below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented unless
otherwise stated.

4.1 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
made up to 31 December each year.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated
in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Where
unrealised losses on intra-group asset sales are reversed
on consolidation, the underlying asset is also tested
for impairment from the Group’s perspective. Amounts
reported in the financial statements of subsidiaries have
been adjusted where necessary to ensure consistency with
the accounting policies adopted by the Group.

4.2 Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is able
to exercise control. The Company controls an investee if
all three of the following elements are present: power over
the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable returns from
the investee, and the ability to use its power to affect those
variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a change in any
of these elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, interests
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less impairment loss, if
any. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

31 December 2014 —ZE—M&E+-F=+—H
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.3 Foreign currencies

Transactions entered into by the group entities in currencies
other than the functional currency (i.e. the currency of
the primary economic environment in which it operates)
are recorded at the rates ruling when the transactions
occur. Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities
are translated at the rates ruling at the end of reporting
period. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured at
historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit
or loss for the period except for differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which
gains and losses are recognised in other comprehensive
income, in which case, the exchange differences are also
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. HK$) at the average exchange rates for the
year, unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during
the period, in which case, the rates approximating to those
ruling when the transactions took place are used. All assets
and liabilities of foreign operations are translated at the rate
ruling at the end of reporting period. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated in equity as translation reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
exchange differences recognised in the translation reserve
relating to that operation up to the date of disposal are
reclassified to profit or loss as part of the profit or loss on
disposal.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4., BERETHRME @)

POLICIES (Continued)

4.4 Property, plant and equipment 4.4 ¥  BERZE

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for
its intended use.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost less their
estimated residual value over their estimated useful life,
using straight-line method as follows:

Buildings 20 years
Leasehold improvements 4 to 5 years, or over the lease
terms, whichever is shorter

Machinery 10 years

Furniture, fixtures and 3to 5 years
office equipment

Motor vehicles 4 to 5 years

The assets’ estimated residual values, estimated useful
lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted
if appropriate, at least at the end of each reporting date.

Gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or
loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All other costs, such
as repairs and maintenance, are charged to profit or loss
during the period in which they are incurred.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.5

4.6

Payments for leasehold land held for own
use under operating leases

Payments for leasehold land held for own use under
operating leases represent up-front payments to acquire
long-term interests in lessee-occupied properties. These
payments are stated at cost and are amortised over the
period of the lease on straight-line method as an expense.

Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are initially recognised
as assets at their fair value or, if lower, the present value
of the minimum lease payments. The corresponding lease
commitment is shown as a liability. Lease payments are
analysed between capital and interest. The interest element
is charged to profit or loss over the period of the lease and
is calculated so that it represents a constant proportion of
the lease liability. The capital element reduces the balance
owed to the lessor.

The total rentals payable under the operating leases are
recognised in profit or loss on straight-line method over the
lease term. Lease incentives received are recognised as an
integrated part of the total rental expense, over the term of
the lease.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.7 Financial instruments

(i)

Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets at initial
recognition, depending on the purpose for which
the asset was acquired. Financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss are initially measured at
fair value and all other financial assets are initially
measured at fair value plus transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
assets. Regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. A regular way purchase or sale is a
purchase or sale of a financial asset under a contract
whose terms require delivery of the asset within the
time frame established generally by regulation or
convention in the marketplace concerned.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

These assets include financial assets held for
trading and financial assets designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near
term. Derivatives are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments or financial guarantee contracts.

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss, except where the embedded derivative
does not significantly modify the cash flows or it is
clear that separation of the embedded derivative is
prohibited.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

Financial assets may be designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss
if the following criteria are met: (i) the designation
eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent
treatment that would otherwise arise from measuring
the assets or recognising gains or losses on them
on a different basis; (ii) the assets are part of a
group of financial assets which is managed and its
performance evaluated on a fair value basis according
to a documented management strategy; or (iii) the
financial asset contains an embedded derivative that
would need to be separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair
value, with changes in fair value recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.

Loans and receivables

These assets are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They arise principally through
the provision of goods and services to customers
(trade debtors), and also incorporate other types of
contractual monetary asset. Subsequent to initial
recognition, they are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method, less any identified
impairment losses.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #%#& M7t

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets (Continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, including cash and
bank balances, comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits and other short-term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to a known
amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value. For the purpose of cash flows
presentation, cash and cash equivalents include bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form
an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group assesses, at the end of each reporting
period, whether there is any objective evidence that
financial asset is impaired. Financial asset is impaired
if there is objective evidence of impairment as a
result of one or more events that has occurred after
the initial recognition of the asset and that event
has an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the financial asset that can be reliably estimated.
Evidence of impairment may include:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- granting concession to a debtor because of
debtor’s financial difficulty; and

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (continued)

(ii)

(ifi)

Impairment loss on financial assets (Continued)

An impairment loss on loans and receivables is
recognised in profit or loss when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured
as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of financial asset is reduced
through the use of an allowance account. When any
part of financial asset is determined as uncollectible,
it is written off against the allowance account for the
relevant financial asset.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities, depending
on the purpose for which the liabilities were incurred.
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are initially measured at fair value and financial
liabilities at amortised costs are initially measured at
fair value, net of directly attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
include financial liabilities held for trading and financial
liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair
value through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if
they are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near
term. Derivatives are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments. Gains or losses on liabilities held for
trading are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #%#& M7t

31 December 2014 —ZE—M&E+-F=+—H

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 4., BERETHRME @)

POLICIES (Continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (continued)
(iiij)  Financial liabilities (Continued)

4.7 €®WI A (&)
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Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(Continued)

Where a contract contains one or more embedded
derivatives, the entire hybrid contract may be
designated as a financial liability at fair value through
profit or loss, except where the embedded derivative
does not significantly modify the cash flows or it is
clear that separation of the embedded derivative is
prohibited.

Financial liabilities may be designated upon initial
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss if the
following criteria are met: (i) the designation eliminates
or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that
would otherwise arise from measuring the liabilities
or recognising gains or losses on them on a different
basis; (i) the liabilities are part of a group of financial
liabilities which are managed and their performance
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with
a documented risk management strategy; or (i) the
financial liability contains an embedded derivative that
would need to be separately recorded.

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair
value, with changes in fair value recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they arise.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (continued)
(iiij)  Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

The Group classifies its financial liabilities as financial
liabilities at amortised cost, including trade and bills
payables, accruals and other payables, amounts due
to subsidiaries and interest-bearing borrowings.

(@) Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised
initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred. Interest-bearing borrowings are
subsequently stated at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is
recognised in profit or loss over the period of
the loans using the effective interest method.

Interest-bearing borrowings are classified
as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of
each reporting period.

(b)  Other financial liabilities

All other financial liabilities are recognised initially
at their fair value, net of directly attributable
transaction costs incurred and subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #%#& M7t

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.7 Financial instruments (continued)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest income
or interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts or payments through
the expected life of the financial asset or liability, or
where appropriate, a shorter period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that
requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a
specified debtor fails to make payment when due
in accordance with the original or modified terms of
a debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract
issued by the Group and not designated as at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised initially at
its fair value less transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issue of the financial guarantee
contract. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contact at the
higher of: (i) the amount determined in accordance
with HKAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, cumulative
amortisation recognised in accordance with HKAS 18
Revenue.

31 December 2014

—F-me+-A=+-A

4, BERETTBERME &)

4.7 €®WI A (&)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

BRFIFZE
BERMNFENFEMBE
R T B R B A
S H el BAN YRR
ARFEBFREXNTTE - B
BAETDRIBEERE
BRI AR E B (1
EA) BE HEAE RS
RIGFIRER S WA ST
FRHIFIE -

ERETH

ARRBEITHOREZ TAR
B WS IR B B
TTRARGCHR

ZRIEREH

CRUERA IR EET
ANBX R sRIBAE R
BAEABBEEBAKREE
BB ES T AN R LR
BRI TR ROBE
ERBIENEH - AEE
BITMARBIEEBARTF
B2 BT A HE
mHERIERALOTIVIX
REAFERBITSRIE
REHNMEEELENRS
FRA T LATERR o IR)4aTE
RiE - NEEIZ()RES
BT ER EI7H
H ABENXBE
ElBETNESE: ki
KRS BB (R 1B
E) RIEEE YT ERE
185% [ e | MR R 5T
BHEmERNRe &

=
=-°

75



/6

Runway Global Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2014

Notes to the Financial Statements 817k 7+

31 December 2014 —Z—M&E+-F=+—H

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.7 Financial instruments continueq)
(vii) Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments, in individual contracts
or separated from hybrid financial instruments,
are initially recognised at fair value on the date the
derivative contract is entered into and subsequently
remeasured at fair value. Derivatives that are not
designated as hedging instruments are accounted for
as financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss. Gains or losses arising from
changes in fair value are taken directly to profit or loss
for the year.

(viii) Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the
contractual rights to the future cash flows in relation
to the financial asset expire or when the financial
asset has been transferred and the transfer meets the
criteria for derecognition in accordance with HKAS
39.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.

4.8 Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and
subsequently at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion
and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition. Cost is calculated
using the weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price in the ordinary course
of business less the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

4, BEREFTBERME )

4.7 €®mI A (&)

(vii)

(vili) #& LEFERZ

48 BFE

TTEEHMIT A

B AHNKBIRE
SMIANTESMT
B RETSIATAETEAY
HBNSERDTERER -
HpmATESHTE -
A 4 T A R T BT
ETAEEARUATES
EE#B AL HIBRY
M EERMBEEA
o FNATESEES
Ml Sk B E AT AR

<

Bl

[

JUNER B 765 & EE i s SR )
RRBARRENE KRR
HEER - IMHEEL
E#EE MEERTAEAE
FETERIFE 3HRTERL
IEFERAER - RIS B4
IHERZM B EE -

EERAHNTIIHANEE
R - RESHEKE R
AlgR tERPFAE -

FEVIRL AR, - BRI
A3 A] B3R (B R K R
R NABEMARBRA - 8
B REFEF)E B AR

REPTEEAE MRS » FRATY
BRI ERETE - ATEIRF
ERAEEHBETOMGTER
G TR TR RS E TR
Bt EMETE -



F IR R A
—F-mreg

Notes to the Financial Statements B #%#& M7t

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.9

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital is
determined using the nominal value of shares that have
been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issuing of shares
are deducted from share premium (net of any related
income tax benefit) to the extent they are incremental costs
directly attributable to the equity transaction.

4.10 Revenue recognition

4.11

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable and represents amounts receivable
for goods and services provided in the normal course
of business, net of return, discounts, rebate and sales
related taxes. Revenue from sale of goods is recognised on
transfer of risks and rewards of ownership, which is at the
time of delivery and the title is passed to customer.

Interest income is accrued on a time-proportion basis on
the principal outstanding at the applicable interest rate; and

Sample income is recognised on the transfer of significant
risks and rewards of ownership to the customer. This is
usually taken at the time when the samples are delivered
and the customer has accepted the samples.

Income taxes

Income taxes for the year comprise current tax and
deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
disallowable for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4,11 Income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except for
goodwill and recognised assets and liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profits, deferred tax liabilities
are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates appropriate to the
expected manner in which the carrying amount of the asset
or liability is realised or settled and that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of reporting period.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except when
they relate to items recognised in other comprehensive
income in which case the taxes are also recognised in
other comprehensive income or when they relate to items
recognised directly in equity in which case the taxes are
also recognised directly in equity.

4.12 Employee benefit
(i)  Defined contribution retirement plan

The Group’s entities incorporated in Hong Kong
manages a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”), a defined
contribution scheme managed by an independent
trustee for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF scheme. The Group makes
contributions based on a percentage of the eligible
employees’ salaries funded by the Group and are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF scheme.
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Notes to the Financial Statements B #%#& M7t

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.12 Employee benefit continuea)

(i)

(ii)

Defined contribution retirement plan (Continued)

The Group’s entities established in the People’s
Republic of China, excluding Hong Kong and Macau
(the “PRC”) make monthly contributions to a state-
sponsored defined contribution scheme for the
local staff. The contributions are made at a specific
percentage on the standard salary pursuant to laws
of the PRC and relevant regulation issued by local
social security authorities.

In addition, the Group’s entities incorporated in the
United States of America (the “USA”) make monthly
contributions to a defined contribution scheme under
the relevant federal program for the local staff. The
Group makes contributions based on a percentage of
the local staff’s funded by the Group and are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in the rules
of the scheme.

Contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
are recognised as an expense in profit or loss when
the services are rendered by the employees.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are employee benefits
(other than termination benefits) that are expected to
be settled wholly before twelve months after the end
of the annual reporting period in which the employees
render the related service.

Employee entitiements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to the reporting
date.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.12 Employee benefit continuea)

B

(i)  Short-term employee benefits (Continued)

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.

4.13 Impairment of other assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment,
payments for leasehold land held for own use under
operating leases and interests in subsidiaries to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets have
suffered an impairment loss or an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased.

If the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair value
less costs to sell and value-in-use) of an asset is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount
of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised as
income immediately.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.14 Capitalisation of borrowing costs

4.15

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. Income earned on temporary investments
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on those
assets is deducted from borrowing costs capitalised. All
other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, which it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits that can be
reliably estimated will be resulted.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, the
existence of which will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more future events, are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.
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4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.16 Related parties

@)

A person or a close member of that person’s family is
related to the Group if that person:

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is @ member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Company'’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions apply:

(i)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is
a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.
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Notes to the

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

4.16 Related parties (continueq)
(b)  (Continued)

(iv)  One entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity.

(v)  The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of the employees of the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

(vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vl A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of key
management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity
and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner;
and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or
domestic partner.

Financial Statements B 7k & M5

31 December 2014 —ZE—M&E+-F=+—H
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are discussed below:

(@)

(b)

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in a number of
jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required in determining
the worldwide provision for income taxes, timing of
payment of related taxes and interpretation of relevant
tax regulations. There are transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The
Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax based on
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made. In addition,
deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
This requires significant judgement on the tax treatments of
certain transactions and also assessment on the probability
that adequate future taxable profits will be available for the
deferred tax assets to be recovered.

Impairment of receivables

Provision policy for doubtful debts of the Group is based
on the ongoing evaluation of the collectability and ageing
analysis of the outstanding receivables and on the
management’s judgement. A considerable amount of
judgement is required in assessing the ultimate realisation
of these receivables, including creditworthiness and the
past collection history of each customer and the related
parties. If the financial conditions of the customers and
other debtors of the Group were to deteriorate, resulting in
an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional
impairment may be required.

5.
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EEEZENETERR

(5t RSB AS E G - WEANBE
CHRBEMEAZ  AEEABERLT
RSB KRR A BTEH o

AR5 AR (3 R B - (B
VB A R B B E B SR
Hi R o AHEARBEE T @
RFEAEERE EOEDHELRE
ARBRR i R RANT

(a) FiBe®i

REEE S B R AR R AR
BH - REEMSHRAOZIRE
B ERRTH AR B [ S 14 R
BE < MR B M B R A -
ETRS RETET A HIAREE
RARTUA - AEBIREMA RS
BAREEIH - SIBFTIAER
BiE - WZEFERREAENH
RSSO RBREER
EHERRFEFLERETH
RSB IR E R TR 1t
S IREFRIRE E R AT RE IR A]
BN A ARG B 2 R RO E
MRBUE M T IARER o ILRFR
BE TR HMRIEEIEAIFE
KA - HFHFHEREELER
PR E M A EEIET TR A
EERATRENE

(b) FEWFIERE

AEEAARRBEBRRTVE
RERERE RN AT B E
BRI ATV ERT A R B IR
EH)HIER o TR RRZ S RURIE
RREER RN - B REHE
ERx - RREEEEP L
MERE MBEERCE o A
KEEP REMER AT FR
MR - SHHEHNEENMRE
AR RERBIFEZRE °



F IR R A
—F-mreg

Notes to the Financial Statements B #%#& M7t

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Impairment of inventories

Management of the Group reviews the inventories at each
reporting date, and makes allowance for impairment of
obsolete, slow-moving and impaired items. Management
estimates the net realisable value for such inventories based
primarily on the expected future market conditions and the
estimated selling price. The Group makes allowance for
impairment if the net realisable value is below the carrying
amount.

Fair value of derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments included in the Group’s
financial statements require measurement at and disclosure
of fair value. The directors use their judgement in selecting
an appropriate valuation technique for derivative financial
instruments not quoted in an active market. Valuation
techniques commonly used by market practitioners are
applied.

The fair value measurement of the Group’s derivative
financial instruments utilises market observable inputs and
data as far as possible. Inputs used in determining fair
value measurements are categorised into different levels
based on how observable the inputs used in the valuation
technique utilised are (the fair value hierarchy):

° Level 1: Quoted prices in active markets for identical
items (unadjusted);

° Level 2: Observable direct or indirect inputs other
than Level 1 inputs;

° Level 3: Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived from
market data).

The classification of an item into the above levels is based
on the lowest level of the inputs used that has a significant
effect on the fair value measurement of the item. Transfers
of items between levels are recognised in the period they
occur.

31 December 2014
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)

(e) Impairment of non-financial assets

(f)

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period
whether there is an indication that an asset may be
impaired. If any such indication exists, the Group makes
an estimate of the recoverable amount of the asset. This
requires an estimation of the value-in-use of the cash-
generating unit (the “CGU”) to which the asset is allocated.
Estimating the value-in-use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from the CGU
and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows. A change
in the estimated future cash flows and/or the discount
rate applied will result in an adjustment to the estimated
impairment provision previously made.

Estimated useful lives of property, plant and
equipment

In determining the useful lives of property, plant and
equipment, the Group has to consider various factors, such
as expected usage of the asset, expected physical wear
and tear, the care and maintenance of the asset, and legal
or similar limits on the use of the asset. The estimation of
the useful life of the asset is made based on the experience
of the Group with similar assets that are used in a similar
way. Depreciation charge is revised if the estimated useful
lives of items of property, plant and equipment are different
from the previous estimation. Estimated useful lives are
reviewed, at the end of each reporting period, based on
changes in circumstances.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

An operating segment is a component of the Group that is
engaged in business activities from which the Group may earn
revenue and incur expenses, and is identified on the basis of the
internal management reporting information that is provided to
and regularly reviewed by the Group’s chief operating decision
maker in order to allocate resources and assess performance
of the segment. The information reported to the executive
directors, who are the chief operating decision makers for the
purpose of resource allocation and assessment of performance,
do not contain profit or loss information of each product line
or geographical area and the executive directors reviewed the
financial result of the Group as a whole reported under HKFRSs.
Therefore, the executive directors have determined that the
Group has only one single business component/reportable
segment as the Group is only engaged in manufacturing and
trading of apparels. The executive directors allocate resources
and assess performance on an aggregated basis. Accordingly,
no operating segment is presented.

The Company is an investment holding company and the
principal places of the Group’s operations are in the PRC and
Hong Kong. Management determines the Group is domiciled in
Hong Kong, which is the Group’s principal operating location.

The Group’s revenue from external customers is divided into the
following geographical areas:

31 December 2014 —ZE—M&E+-F=+—H

7 ERE

gaD I A S EN E A REUKRE &
SIBFAX R RIEE M — (B4 AR
7 ARENRREERRABRER
NEMERAMES D BERD KRR
HEHEO AR E R 2 HRER AERT
BELEDH - RAFEME  MEH
REEEERRANNTERERA
ERDAERDERRAFENZF
B WRESRERRIIFILED
BREMN MATEEEEEBHERN
AEBRFEREM B REER 2R
BTG EEAE - Bt - EN AR EERE
REREERE S BITEFTRRAE
BREE—EXBERTS 2]
DEb - MITESRRAEEDEER
RFHERE B UENEED

BB e

ARRR—EEREZERRTR  MAK
BEENTRHMHBUNPERES -
EEEREEERAEEREMAE
o TFRASERNEREEE -

REBERBINAEP AL AT

EE5D -

The USA EBH
Canada nEX
Others HbEIx

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET
253,710 232,553
123,762 123,372

2,243 4,782
379,715 360,707
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

Geographical location of external customers is based on the
location at which the customers are domiciled. No revenue was
attributable to Hong Kong, the place that the Group domiciled,
during the year (2013: nil).

The principal non-current assets held by the Group are located
in the PRC. Insignificant portion of the non-current assets is
located in Hong Kong, the place that the Group domiciled at the
reporting date.

Revenue from each major customer which accounted for 10% or
more of the Group’s revenue for the year is set out below:

DESER (&)
SREFMMENEERERSEE
MBI - ARG EAEE N E B ES
FEBBRA (ZB—=4F : ) -

AEBEFENTIEFRPEEILR
hE - RImEAY RBELEFERD
BEMNAEENEZLEE

KAFREREBRAA10%HIA LK
BEXBREPHWARIILOT

Customer A ZFH
Customer B 2R
Customer C ZFEA
Customer D BET
Customer E BRI

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
T T
123,762 123,372
86,873 69,498
43,459 50,165
56,075 48,037
38,731 VSN iik

Accounted for less than 10% of the Group’s revenue

As at 31 December 2014, 88% (2013: 74%) of the Group’s trade
receivables was due from these customers.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the sale
of apparels, net of returns, discounts, rebates and sales related
taxes.

* Fr{h TR A EEBA 10%

R-E—mE+=—A=+—8 1%
EEMERESIMEAEEE 5B
FRIEBB% (—T— = : 74%) °

WA - HApU AR Wz
WA (T AKEEE L) HRE
WERRAOBA - LERERE -
i1~ B REHE HRIRBIA -
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31 December 2014 —Z—NF&+—-HA=+—H

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (Continued) 7.

An analysis of revenue, other income and gains is as follows:

WA - HA WA R WS
(40)
WA Ef A RIR SO D T -

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FH&T

Revenue WA
Sale of goods HEEM 379,715 360,707
Other income and gains Hag A K Wz
Gain on disposals of property, HEME - HE M REWRE
plant and equipment 9
Interest income R BUA 56
Sample income ERRUA a7
Sundry income IR 7
189
FINANCE COSTS 8. REMAK
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#&xT FHET
Interest expenses on interest-bearing T AN FELZEEEH
borrowings wholly repayable SEEEFNERX
within five years 740
Interest expenses on obligations AR ERENT SR
under finance leases 33

773
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PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

—FT-mFFTZA=t+—H

Profit before income tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

BR P15 Bt Al g A
FIE IR E
2014

HK$’000
FET

Amortisation of payments for
leasehold land held
for own use under operating
leases

Auditor’s remuneration

Cost of inventories recognised
as expense

Depreciation of property, plant
and equipment

Foreign exchange differences, net

Gain on disposals of property, plant
and equipment

Operating lease charges in respect
of land and buildings

Employee benefit expense
(including directors’ emoluments
(note 10))

— Wages and salaries

— Pension scheme contribution

— defined contribution plans
— Other benefits

REEHA THHFE A
BVAE & L b R 8

ZEREN N &
EHRRFAXMNFERA

M - BB LREITE

VE R
HEYE - BB k&K

THREFTREROER

EERFIAX
(BIEEEHS
(Mf3£10))

-TERFS

- RIRGTEIERR

- REHFKETE

- HigF)

54
570

285,628

2,076
1,124

(27)

3,628

BRPTSBADE M &M, GtA) T

2013
HK$’000
THAT

54
550

275,766

2,668
1,314

41,234

2,211
2,589

46,034
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10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST 10. EEMERAEBEEHA
PAID INDIVIDUALS T

(@) Directors’ emoluments (a) EEM<E
The emoluments of each of the directors for the year are REBHREEEESHMES W
set out below: e
Salaries,
allowances
and benefits Pension
in kind scheme
Fees e BB contributions Total
ne REVEFN  BAGHEGR @t
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000
TR TR THT THER
Year ended 31 December 2014 HZ-_E-—MF
TZAZ+-HLEE
Executive directors: HITEE -
Mr. Hubert Tien HBEHLE
Mr. Farzad Gozashti Farzad Gozashti - &

Independent non-executive directors: B I TEE -

Mr. Lai Man Sing BYERAE
Mr. Tang Shu Pui, Simon oYy
Mr. Tang Tsz Kai, Kevin Hrkrs
Total emoluments Bi& s

Year ended 31 December 2013 BEz-B-=F%

TZA=t+-BLEE
Executive directors: HITEE
Mr. Hubert Tien HBEHEE - 1,519 15 1,534
Mr. Farzad Gozashti Farzad Gozashti ft £ - 1,534 - 1,534
- 3,058 15 3,068
Independent non-executive directors:  BUFHTEE :
Mr. Lai Man Sing BYERAE 13 - - 13
Mr. Tang Shu Pui, Simon ol 13 - - 13
Mr. Tang Tsz Kai, Kevin HFEEE 13 - - 13
39 - - 39

Total emoluments e 25 39 3,053 15 3,107
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10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued)

(@)

(b)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Mr. Tien and Mr. Gozashti were appointed as the executive
directors of the Company on 19 June 2013. Mr. Lai Man
Sing, Mr. Tang Shu Pui, Simon and Mr. Tang Tsz Kai, Kevin
were appointed as independent non-executive directors of
the Company on 22 November 2013.

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals of the Group included 2
(2013: 2) directors for the year whose emoluments are
reflected in note 10(a). The analysis of the emoluments of
the remaining 3 (2013: 3) highest paid individuals for the
year is set out below:

10. EEME R EBRESHFA
T &)

(a)

(b)

Salaries, allowances and e R REYEF

benefits in kind

The number of non-director highest paid employees whose
emoluments fell within the following bands is as follows:

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000 7T

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000

1,000,001 7T % 1,500,000/ 7T
2,000,001 BT E 2,500,000 8 7T
3,000,001 7T E 3,500,000 % 7T

EEME ()

M % 4 K Gozashtie £ 97 —
T—=FXRNATNBEEZEAR
NAFITESE - BXESLLE -
B ERBTREEIR T
—ZFE+—A-+-_RAEZTA
RNARBIYIEHITES -

hEBREHAL
REEREENIRREHAL
BEMNEEE (ZE—=ZF W
&) B S e RRAER
10() e Ep=% (ZT—=F:
=8) BReH ATRAEE &
EAMWAT

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET TAT
3,962

FEZRHA LM ERIA
TEE

Number of employees

EEAR

2014
HK$’000
FRET

2013
HK$’000
TAT
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10. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE HIGHEST

PAID INDIVIDUALS (Continued)

(c) During the years ended 31 December 2014 and 2013,
no director or any of the highest paid individuals waived

or agreed to waive any emoluments and there were no
emoluments paid by the Group to the directors or any of
the highest paid individuals of the Group as an inducement
to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for

11.IN

loss of office.

COME TAX EXPENSE

10. EEMiERABRSHA

*+ ()
() RBE—2-WER-FT—=4

TZA=+—BLLEE  HEE
FHEMERFATREXRE
WEEMNNE - BAREEGER
E=FEARSHFALNER
e (ERAFEMAAREERK
MAREYERE - SKBERH(E -

1. Frf8HiBI

Current income tax charged
for the year:
Hong Kong profits tax
PRC enterprise income tax (“EIT”)
USA corporate income tax

FEEAMFEHMAX

FRMEMR
REIDEMSH ([ REMFH)
KEIBRMEN

(i)

(i

(i)

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the British Virgin
Islands (“BVI”) and the Cayman Islands, the Group is not
subject to any taxation under these jurisdictions.

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% (2013: 16.5%)

on the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong

during the year.

i)  PRC EIT is provided at 25% (2013: 25%) on the estimated
assessable profits of the Group’s PRC subsidiary for the

year.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%

withholding income tax is levied on the dividends remitted
by the companies established in the PRC to their foreign
investors starting from 1 January 2008. A lower withholding
tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty between the
PRC and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors. Dividends
coming from the profits generated by the PRC companies
after 1 January 2008 are subject to this withholding income
tax. The withholding income tax rate applicable to the

Group is 5% (2013: 5%).

(i)

(i)

(v)

2014
HK$’000
FTHET

2013
HK$'000
TATT

3,576
1,245
15

4,836

RELBHARNS (B4
BREE]) MFASEENRA
FMED] » NEE B AR NZLE R
ERER A EATIA

BERSHEAFEERBEE
MY b ETFERR DR FH9 16.5% (=
T—=F 165%) 7H -

PRI SR R A EEPEH
M A B A FE SRR E
FE25% (T —=F : 25%)
ETIRRME o

RIBFEMEMSIE B=F
TENF—A Bt BYUEFH
R A BB EBIMEEE TR
BB B U1 0% I TBINFT 1S H ©
fisi o B B O NS A & P RLARE
ERIARMRE - AR sEE AR
REOFBHR R - R-ZTT)\F—
B—B#BFPERQFELRFIER
MR BBEMNTEINATIS R - A&
BiERRBHAERERS% (=
T—=F :15%)°

93



94

Runway Global Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2014

Notes to the Financial Statements B #&#&E Mt

31 December 2014 —Z—M&E+-F=+—H

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continueq) 11. i
(v)  (Continued) (iv)

As at 31 December 2014, temporary differences relating to
the undistributed profits of the PRC subsidiary amounted
to HK$16,054,000 (2013: HK$10,309,000). No deferred
tax liabilities have been recognised in respect of these
differences because the Group is in a position to control the
dividend policies of this subsidiary and it is probable that
these profits will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

(v)  The USA corporate income tax comprises federal income (V)
tax calculated at 15% and state and local income tax
calculated at various rates on the estimated assessable
profits of the Group’s subsidiary in the USA.

SEAX @)
(%)

WZZE—NF+=—A=+—80"
B3R B B R B R D IR B IS
RARE = 2 $ %8 4516,054,000
Bt (ZZ— =4 : 10,309,000
BIL) o B FEERITEERE
EMIEEE  RAZRAEESE
AT LT R A R AR B BUCR At
7 - MAMEELA B ARRA
gE g -

LIOEFAHDERAEER
BB A Al ERR
452 15% S+ 4915 0 57 19 B bA
BRI B S 60 B
a8 -

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to profit before AT W R 5 E E R AT 5 A1 A E
income tax at the statutory tax rate to the income tax expense at RAOMEHRAY - BREENEREE
the effective tax rate is as follows: RIFTS B YRR T ¢

Profit before income tax R BT 1S5 A A

Tax calculated at the rates applicable LA AR A B@H% =R

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR THAT

31,567 18,365

to profits in the tax jurisdiction EAH TR ET ETIA
concerned 4,772
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses T8EFNFL BT L HFi fs 22 & 79
Others EAfh (19)
Income tax expense FriSfif > 4,836
12. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE 12. AR EHEE AELER
COMPANY
The consolidated profit attributable to owners of the Company HE-ZT—NF+_A=+—HIF
for the year ended 31 December 2014 includes a loss of B RKRBIERAEIESEESRNE
HK$822,000 (2013: HK$11,011,000) which has been dealt with JEE 188220008 L (ZE— = :
in the financial statements of the Company (note 28). 11,011,000 7T) - HERARRQE 28t

MR P ERIE (ff5E28) °
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14.

Notes to the Financial Statements B #%#& M7t

DIVIDENDS

During the year ended 31 December 2013, Runway Global
Limited (“Runway HK”), a subsidiary of the Company, declared
and paid interim dividends of HK$0.13 per ordinary share (totaling
HK$390,000) and special dividends of HK$6.67 per ordinary
share (totaling HK$20,000,000) to its then owners prior to the
completion of the Reorganisation.

No other dividend has been paid or proposed by the Group for
the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2014.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculations of basic earnings per share are based on the
profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company of
approximately HK$25,679,000 (2013: HK$13,529,000) and the
weighted average of 600,000,000 (2013: 461,918,000) shares in
issue during the year.

The weighted average number of shares used to calculate the
basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2013
includes the weighted average of 11,918,000 shares issued upon
the placing of the Company’s shares on 3 December 2013, and
the issue and allotment of a total of 450,000,000 shares in 2013
(notes 27(a) to 27(c)) which were deemed to have been issued
since 1 January 2013.

Diluted earnings per share are the same as the basic earnings
per share as there were no dilutive potential ordinary shares in
existence during the years.

31 December 2014

13.

14.

—F-me+-A=+-A

% E
REBEE-_ZT—=F+=-A=+—H1t
FE - AEEWB AR HRRER
AR ([FEHES]) REETRAIRE
%“E%%ﬁ/\*iﬁ MORAS R BRAR B 3 R
Hx013/%§75(£ 51390,000% 7T)
&%EJ BERILmEe.67 BT (4
.ﬁzo,ooo,oooﬁéx)

RBE-_ZE—=FR_FT-NF+_
A=+t—BLLFE  AEEHERN
FEREAMALS. ©

BRER

BRERBFTIIREADRER AR
1l & JZ % F 49 25,679,000 T (==
=% :13,529,000/8 ) NERE
ﬁ H&fﬁ {9 1 # - 5 £2 600,000,000
(=T — =4 : 461,918,000 %) =t

RUI=S ﬁ%“«

ARstEE=z—_Z2—=Z%1+—-A
=+—HIEFENERERZF &M
BEHROHBERER_Z—=F
T ZAZAEEARRARRMOEEHET
#911,918,000 (% & 0 A RN =
Eé’*ﬁ&@ﬂ%’%mm # 450,000, ooon

K (BEE-_Z—=ZF—A—Hi
Eé’ésﬁ) RIDNAE T8 (M7=
MI5E27(c)) °

RARNFRLEEAEEREEER
B REBREERNERSRERNR
F o
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - GROUP 15. #g% - BERRE - &
=

Furniture,

fixtures

and office

Leasehold equipment Motor

Buildings improvements ~ Machinery i - 8 vehicles Total
BF HENEEE BE RBLERG a3 it

HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HKS'000
TEL TERL TERL TR TR TR

At1 January 2013 R=Z-zf-A-R

Cost KA 17,047 5,867 3,586 8,172 1072 35,944
Accumulated depreciation ZiiE (3.978) (5,112) (1,466) (6,466) (549) (17571)
Net carrying amount RAFE 13,269 755 2,120 1,706 523 18,373

Year ended 31 December 2013 HE-E-CF

TZA=t-HLEE
Opening net carrying amount FORESE 13,269 755 2,120 1706 523 18,373
Additions RE - - 426 435 47 1,278
Disposals ik - - 21) ) (1) (49)
Depreciation ik (784) (689) (328) (652) (219) (2,668)
Exchange differences EXER 261 7 43 9 12 332
Closing net carrying amount BRREFE 12,746 73 2,240 1,489 722 17,270
At 31 December 2013 W-Z-Z£+-A=1-H

and 1 January 2014 R-2-m%-A-H

Cost A 17,507 5,967 3,048 8,579 1,363 37,454
Accumulated depreciation ES i (4,851) (5,894) (1,708 (7,000) (641) (20,184)
Net carrying amount REFE 12,746 73 2,240 1,489 722 17,270
Year ended 31 December 2014 HZ-E-ME

TZA=t-ALEE
Opening net carrying amount EVEETE 2,240 1,489 17,210
Additions NE 83 1,551 1,634
Disposals & (6) (285) (291)
Depreciation e (308) (676) (2,076)
Exchange differences EREE n (4) (64)
Closing net carrying amount BREEEE 2,002 2,075 16,473
At 31 December 2014 R=F-ME+=A=+-H
Cost B 17,524 5,946 3,985 8,965 31,111
Accumulated depreciation ZiinE (5619) (5,921) (1,983) (6,890) (21,304)

Net carrying amount REFE 11,905 25 2,002 2,075 16,473
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15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - GROUP

(Continued)

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s buildings with net carrying
amounts of approximately HK$6,800,000 were pledged to secure
certain interest-bearing borrowing. Such security has been
released upon the Group’s full repayment of borrowing during the
year (note 26(b)).

As at 31 December 2014, the net carrying amounts of the
Group’s assets under finance lease included in the total
amounts of furniture, fixtures and office equipment amounted to
HK$1,093,000 (2013: HK$379,000).

31 December 2014 —ZE—M&E+-F=+—H

15. Y% - BERRE - &%

(&)
N—E—=F+_-_A=+—0" E@
{E#76,800,000 B T ANEEREFE
W BEE TR EEE - KEE
RN ZEEPERAEEEEEERE
TERRRR o (BIFE26(0)) ©

RZZE—ME+-_A=+—HB" B
ATARM BRIEERPARBHAED
AEBEBRERNETEENREDF
8 41,098,000 L (ZF — = F:
379,000 7T) °
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16. PAYMENTS FOR LEASEHOLD LAND HELD FOR
OWN USE UNDER OPERATING LEASES - GROUP

16. RELEHEN T HER AN

HETHIH - ~EH

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR THAT

Net carrying amount at 1 January W—A—HERmFE
Amortisation 3]
Exchange differences X ER

2,183 2,194
(54) (54)
(10) 43

Net carrying amount at 31 December R+— A =+—HWEEFE

Less: Current portion (note 20) B BIERER S (FIEE20)

2,119 2,183
(54) (54)

Non-current portion JERNERER

2,065 2,129

The lease prepayments of the Group represent the Group’s land
use right in respect of a land located in the PRC which is held
under a medium-term lease.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s land use right with net
carrying amount of approximately HK$2,183,000 was pledged
to secure certain interest-bearing borrowing. Such security has
been released upon the Group’s full repayment of borrowing
during the year (note 26(b)).

17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY

17.

AEENHEBNFTEAEEL B
AR B AR RS AR T ihey £
HofsE FFE o

R-ZZE—=F+=-A=+—0 " K&
B IR EFE 472,183,000 B T A L b 5
AEERER  EAE TR EBEEZ
BR - ANFER ZSEFRAEE
BEEEEDERR (FE26(0)) °

R B2 R R ER -
RAT

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR TAT

Unlisted shares, at cost JE TR« RAA

63,603 63,603
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17. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES — COMPANY

31 December 2014

—F-me+-A=+-A

17. R B AR R -
b N/NEIRE )

(Continued)
Particulars of the subsidiaries as at the reporting date are set out RREBBRME AR BERY W
as follows: T
Place/country of Particulars of Place of
incorporation/ issued/ Effective interest held  operation and
Name establishment paid-in capital by the Company principal activities
TMRL BRTR ENNEIEEE ST
g RUME BR CHREA#E BRER EEBERTEEY
Direct  Indirect
HE B3
Great Entrepreneur BVI 4 ordinary shares of 100% - Investment holding in
Investments Limited AEERRES United States dollar Hong Kong
(“Great Entrepreneur’) (‘US$") 1 each REBREER
Great Entrepreneur sRBREETET ([E1)
Investments Limited VLA
([ Great Entrepreneur])
Transformed Holdings Limited ~ BVI 4 ordinary shares of 100% - Investment holding in
(“Transformed Holdings”) EBERRES US$1 each Hong Kong
Transformed Holdings Limited 4R IREE 1R TE REBRERR
([Transformed Holdings ) LER
Runway HK Hong Kong HK$3,000,000 - 100% Investment holding and
FEmE B 3,000,0007&7C trading of apparels in
Hong Kong
REBRBERRKKES
Jiaxing Runway Global PRC US$2,000,000 - 100% Manufacturing and trading
Garment Limited H 2,000,000 7T of apparels in the PRC
B IR IR AR D (SR RRBEIRKEERE S
BRAT
Runway Fashions, Inc. USA 1,000 ordinary shares of - 100% Provision of designing,
(‘Runway US") xH US$1 each marketing and advertising
Runway Fashions, Inc. 1,000 kG REE 1 ETH services in the USA
S il RRER AT
M5 e R EERG

Balances with subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and

repayable on demand.
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18. INVENTORIES - GROUP 18. FE— X&KH

2014 2013

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FT

Raw materials and consumables B S FEM 4,201 5,383

Work in progress paat Uar 1,370 2,171

Finished goods BIRK @ 14,606 10,932

20,177 18,486

=+,
19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES - GROUP 19. %E;g.u&ﬂlﬁﬁmﬁs‘%%
- El

2014 2013

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT FT

Trade receivables A E R 59,790 71,048

Bills receivables FEWEE 3,391 6,587

63,181 77,635
Trade receivables are recognised at their original invoice B RWFIERREZERER - A%
amounts which represented their fair values at initial recognition. EE 5 RYGRIER VI FHERR AT
The Group’s trade receivables are attributable to a number of B - AXEENEZEWEFIBRENZE
independent customers with credit terms. Bills receivables are EEEEHNBEIRR - BREES
received from independent customers under the ordinary course REBEBKBER BB LR UE o
of business. The Group normally allows a credit period ranging REBEBFETEZEFPNT10E60K
from 10 to 60 days (2013: 10 to 60 days) to its customers. Trade (ZZ—=% : 10560K) H=EH -

and bills receivables are non-interest bearing. E ZREBGIE R EREETETE -
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19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES - GROUP

(Continued)

Ageing analysis of trade receivables based on invoice date is as
follows:

31 December 2014 —ZE—M&E+-F=+—H

19. EZRUFHER EWRE

- REB %)
REREANNE S EKTEER S
MR -

0 to 30 days 0&30H
31 to 60 days 31E260H
61 to 90 days 61290H
91 to 180 days 912180 H
Over 180 days @180 H

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FHT
25,567 11,606
23,008 34,529
8,012 22,364
963 2,412
2,240 137
59,790 71,048

As at the reporting date, the Group reviewed its trade receivables
for evidence of impairment on both individual and collective basis.
The Group recognised impairment loss on individual assessment
based on the accounting policy stated in note 4.7(ii). The Group
did not hold any collateral as security over the trade receivables.
However, in order to minimise the credit risk of not receiving
payments from its customers, the Group has entered into
arrangements with a financial institution in the USA and a bank in
Hong Kong (which in turn entered into certain arrangement with
an insurance company in this connection) which offered trade
receivable credit protection arrangement against the Group’s
trade receivables for certain major customers. As at 31 December
2014, trade receivables of approximately HK$18,476,000 (2013:
HK$18,795,000) were under such arrangements of which if the
Group ultimately becomes unable to collect the trade receivables,
the Group will be entitled to receive compensation for the trade
receivables from the financial institution or the bank.

RREBH  AEEIZERMERE
ERGHEFEUGIE  LERARES
BEEMRENSE - AREBIRIENE
A4.7(i) BTt B & 5T B SR - 1R {E B FF 1S
FRERREEE AEELEHREZ
SEWFIBFZ B EMIERR - A
REBERER —RERIEERES
—RIBITEI L T HF (ML & BEE &
FITAIBL L BRB AR LA TR
) BETEIEEFMms A4AEE
WE S ERFBRESZ S EKFERS
BRE -RZZ—WF+=-_A=+—
B - #718,476,000%8 70 (ZZF— =4 :
18,795,000 7T) ME S M HKIBRX
ABBRHRE - Bt IAKER
RAKRREIR DI E 5 RIS - AEE
EREZCRIEEBRRITHERES
FEUGRIBSS TS -
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19. TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES - GROUP

(Continued)

Ageing analysis of trade receivables that were not impaired and
based on due dates is as follows:

10. ES5 RIRNAREREREE
-R&EEH %)
I 8 60 T AR B B 0 P R
EIRER DATAAT -

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TAT

Neither past due nor impaired BEARBH TR ARUE
Not more than 90 days past due BT BB 90 B
91 days to not more than 180 days ~ #HI91 B =1 #8:8180 A

past due

181 days to not more than 1 year #mAf181 HE TR —F
past due

More than 1 year past due mElERR —F

46,370 39,134
10,925 31,557

256 265

1,210 19
1,029 73

59,790 71,048

Trade receivables which were neither past due nor impaired
related to customers for whom there was no recent history of
default.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired related to
a number of customers that had a good track record of credit
with the Group. Based on past credit history, the directors of the
Company believe that no impairment allowance is necessary in
respect of these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still considered to
be fully recoverable.

B AR AT R E R E 5 B IR S
RE)E P - 1930 8 B R N R R

BHYEARRENE 5 YIRS &
MELEF  EAKEHAGRIFE
ik - REBEERESL - ARRESF
RSBARI FERELRERE
RRAREEERYEHRENES
MABBASRIDER AN 2D -
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DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES
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31 December 2014 —ZE—M&E+-F=+—H

20. B& - AARKREMEY

IR

The Group The Company

F&EE AT

2014 2013 2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

TET TAET TER T

Prepayments and other BRI EEMD

receivables, gross FEBGRIE - B%E 37,366 19,571

Less: Provision for W OREE IR R E

impairment losses (1,918) (1,918)

Prepayments and other FART R R EAh

receivables, net FEBGRIE - R
Deposits &e
Payments for leasehold REEHRLTHERADN
land held for own use ME L3 (H3E16)
under operating

leases (note 16)

Other receivables that were neither past due nor impaired related
to counterparties for whom there was no recent history of default.
The directors of the Company consider that other receivables
that were neither past due nor impaired at the reporting date
under review are of good credit quality.

There was no movement in the provision for impairment of
prepayments and other receivables during the years ended
31 December 2013 and 2014.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS - GROUP

The Group uses foreign exchange structured forward contracts to
mitigate its exchange rate exposure of US$ and Renminbi (‘RMB”)
against HK$. The foreign exchange structured forward contracts
are not designated for hedge purposes and are measured at fair
value through profit or loss. Losses from changes in the fair value
of derivative financial instruments amounting to HK$242,000
(2013: gains of HK$1,322,000) were recognised in profit or loss
during the year.

54 54

B AR 80 B R R (B LA FE MR IR I
MR HETF - HIWEITHER R
ik ARAEERS - REHRKRE
MR E B EL UK IR - AT
BHHRE RO ABRIERESR -

BE-F-=4R-F—ME+-8
SH—RIEFE  ERRER bR
FORRER L M B R o

21. fTEERMIE - XEH

AN K EFE N B IR B A A LUR
BREETRARER B THERXRR
B o SN SRR BIA DWW IEIEEME
HAPEMTAEEBREREAFER
B KETESRIAQNFEEHN
E18 &% 242,000/8 7L (2 — =% :
W #51,322,0007%870) ERANFERIE
FEARER
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22. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS — GROUP

As at 31 December 2014, the Group’s time deposits of
HK$4,602,000 (2013: HK$4,224,000) and HK$5,233,000 (2013:
HK$5,196,000) were pledged as securities for the Group’s
bills payables (note 24) and banking facilities respectively.
These banking facilities amounting to HK$49,100,000 (2013:
HK$49,100,000) have not been utilised as at the reporting date
(2013: HK$515,000 utilised with corresponding pledged deposits
amounting to HK$2,101,000 (note 26(a))).

As at 31 December 2014, pledged bank deposits carried interest
at average market rates ranged from 0.25% to 2.55% (2013: 0.3%
to 2.8%) per annum and will be released upon the completion
of bills payable transactions and settlement of interest-bearing
borrowings. The carrying amount of the Group’s pledged bank
deposits are denominated in HK$ and RMB.

23. CASH AND BANK BALANCES — GROUP AND 23.
COMPANY
The Group
FEE

2014
HK$°000
5

Cash and cash ReERRE
equivalents £EIER 57,301
Time deposits TEHER 2,527

22. BEFRITER - T EH

59,828 51,037

HK$'000

RZZ—NF+ZA=+—H &%
8 B3 17 704,602,000 T (=&
—=4F 1 4,224,000/ 7T) }5,233,000
B (ZZF—=% 5,196,000 7T)
EFHEA - DREANEENENE
& (MisE24) RIBITREMER - ¥
R BH - %25 49,100,000 7T (=
T — = 4F : 49,100,0008 7t) Z #R1T
MEHKRBR(ZE—=%F: EHH
515,000 7T - HiEE 2 BEEBEFR
42,101,000 7 (FisE26(a))) °

RZZ—NF+ZA=1+—H0 B&
WBITERAT G FHMNEGENF
025%%255%(=ZF — =% :03%
£28%) ;T8 BRENRERZXS R
B R Et BB E AN R ERRER - K
SECEMRITEROERRENET
RARKEDEE -

ReRBTHET - +5H
JSE YN
The Company
NG
2014
HK$°000
THET

2013 2013
HK$'000

TET

TET
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23. CASH AND BANK BALANCES — GROUP AND

COMPANY (Continued)

Cash at banks earn interest at floating rates based on daily
deposits rates. Short-term time deposit in a bank is made for six
months (2013: nil) and earns interest at short-term deposit rate
of 3.05% (2013: nil) per annum.

As at 31 December 2014, the Group had cash and bank balances
and pledged bank deposits denominated in RMB amounting to
approximately HK$20,557,000 (2013: HK$7,567,000) which were
placed with certain banks in the PRC. RMB is not freely convertible
into other currencies and the remittance of funds out of the PRC is
subject to exchange restrictions imposed by the PRC government.
Under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement and Sales and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for foreign currencies through the banks that are authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

24, TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES - GROUP

31 December 2014

23.

24,

“EF-mET-A=t-A

RERREESEERR - &
SERERTE @)
FEABITHER SRS B RF R LZ
A RBRENGH S » SRITREHERTF
BAEA(ZE—-=F: &) YR8
MR F R EE3.05% (—F— =4
O BULE

R-T—mME+—_A=+—0H K&
EHIRE MIBITETFURNKARE
ErE EIFIRITFE AL AR 20,557,000
B (=ZZ — = F:7,567,000%8
JC)  FEIREBRAME THRIT A
RETEAHRABRAEMER - e
PE SR BH AN B A B TR K9 HNEE
BB AR o RIEHE A (HNEE IR
GBI R CEEE - EERMNEEER
E) AREBEBBERETINESE
FORITISARE LR BHMER o

BEZRIRERENRE
- R&EH

Trade payables B S HRIE
Bills payables JET &

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR THAT
52,451 58,634
15,340 14,078
67,791 72,712

Credit periods of trade payables normally granted by its suppliers
were ranging from 15 to 120 days (2013: from 15 to 120 days).

HEBLRTAEEZ ZEMNIEBENE
BN F155120K (ZE—=
£ 153]120K) °
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24. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES — GROUP 24, ESENREREMNEE
(Continued) - REB (®)
Ageing analysis of trade payables based on invoice date is as BEEZAMNE FHENZIERRD
follows: T
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
FaET FAT
0 to 30 days 0Z30H 20,741 15,910
31 to 60 days 31E60H 17,816 21,228
61 to 90 days 61290H 5,371 9,154
91 to 180 days 912180 H 6,256 11,215
Over 180 days HBiE180 H 2,267 1,127
52,451 58,634
Bills payables are normally settled on 180-day (2013: 180) credit EREEBEZRIBOKX (ZE—=F:
terms. Bills payables were secured by the Group’s pledged bank 180°K) MIEEEILEL o ERTRIRAR
deposits (note 22). EEMBEIFRITER (H5E22) &
R o
25. ACCRUALS, OTHER PAYABLES AND RECEIPTS IN 25. TE?EEEJ - H At FE 1S FRIB
ADVANCE K FEWRIE
The Group The Company

AEE

2014
HK$000
TR

Accruals BIREBR 4,984
Other payables H At FE {15008 9,452
Receipts in advance TaU B 647

11,770

15,083 17,178

AT

2013 2014 2013
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TAT TR TAT

4,576

832
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2 H
26. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS — GROUP 26. ;TEEE - X&EH
2014 2013
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
fiisE FHExT FAET
Current portion: IS
Bank loan, secured and guaranteed  $R{7EH « G RER (@) 515
Bank loan, secured BTER  HIEH (b) 64
Bank loans, guaranteed BITER - BER (© 6,545
Bank loan due for repayment after — #HAEREREBKETE
one year which contain repayment ~ R—FEEEH
on demand clause, guaranteed RUER  BER © 2,022
Obligations under finance leases, BERERE BEAE
secured 29(a) 246
9,392
Non-current portion: FEEBA
Obligations under finance leases, BHEMERE - HIER
secured 29(a) 172
9,564
Interests borne at rates per annum  FERNFUTHEZ
in the range of: FHEHE
— Fixed-rate borrowings - TBEE 6.0% t0 6.2%

- Variable-rate borrowings - Z8EE 2.8% t0 5.3%
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26. INTEREST-BEARING BORROWINGS — GROUP
(Continued)

Total

interest-bearing borrowings due for repayment based on

the scheduled repayment dates without taking into the effect of
any repayment on demand clause are as follows:

26.

AE;l- /%‘

B8 - AEE #)

ERTEEENR A B CREF REFRE
KEEGROTE) WEEESE

B

e

Within one year —FR

More than one year, —F L HETEBBARE
but not exceeding two years

More than two years, MEA BT BBRSE

but not exceeding five years

Notes:

As at 31 December 2013, the bank loan was secured by pledged bank
deposits with carrying values of approximately HK$2,101,000 (note 22) and
personal guarantees by the directors of the Company. The loan has been
fully repaid during the year.

As at 31 December 2013, the bank loan was secured by the Group’s
buildings (note 15) and land use right (note 16). These securities have been
released upon the Group’s full repayment of the loan during the year.

The bank loans were secured by personal guarantees by the directors of
the Company and the SME Financing Guarantee Scheme executed by The
Hong Kong Mortgage Corporation Limited. The guarantee under Special
Loan Guarantee Scheme executed by The Government of Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region as at 31 December 2013 has been released
upon the Group’s full repayment of the related loans during the year.

TEE

(@)

(b)

()

AR
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FHT FAT
823 7,370
860 2,194
1,448 -
3,131 9,564

R-ZZE—=F+-F=+—8 " Z5#
TERCECKBETEREREDY
2,101,000 T (Mi3E22) RARRE
EMEAERRERSE - AFERN - &
SERCEHEE -

RZE—=F+=ZA=+—H " RITE
FUAEBENETF (FF3E15) RtifE
FAtE (BIaE16) VEIEIR « REEN - 3%
SRANAEBEREERDERR -

FZERITEFEARTEEEARLRA
REBRBESARAB BN D
BREERBRERE - R —=F
TZA=t—RABEBHNTRERNE
MR BIEERBEBIETAER - ©
AEERFATHEERBETREE
FRER -
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27. R
rEH
R-E—=F—A—HB2ZHE8UKEK
MR 7 AT 0 8 T8 M E

27. SHARE CAPITAL
The Group

The share capital balance in the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 1 January 2013 represented the issued

share capital of Runway HK and Runway US. TR 2 BT o
The Company ZNA
Nominal value
Number of of ordinary
shares shares
BRBEE EREREE
HK$’000
FAT
Authorised: SEE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FRREE0.01 BT T B
At 19 June 2013 MRZTE—=FA+thB
(date of incorporation) (note (a)) (FEfACSZ B ER) (M5E (a)) 38,000,000 380
Increase in share capital on WZZE—=F+—HF=+=H
22 November 2013 (note (b)) A 3E o0 (K& (b)) 9,962,000,000 99,620
At 31 December 2013, R-B—=%F+=HA=+—H "
1 January 2014 and —E-NF-A—BRK
31 December 2014 —E-NE+=-H=+—H 10,000,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAR :
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FRREEO0.01 BT E B
At 19 June 2013 RZZT—=FA+hAB
(date of incorporation) (FEfAksz B &) - -
Issuance of shares upon AEEA S R B AT AR (i EE (a))
incorporation (note (a)) 2 -
Issuance of shares upon REAREITIRD (MR (C))
the Reorganisation (note (c)) 1,999,998 20
Capitalisation issue (note (d)) BARETT (3 (d)) 448,000,000 4,480
Issuance of shares upon placing RECER TR (MIEE(e))
(note (g)) 150,000,000 1,500
At 31 December 2013, R=—EB—=%5+=-A=+—8 "
1 January 2014 and —E-NFE-A—BRK
31 December 2014 —ZE-MNE+=-H=+—H 600,000,000 6,000
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27. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

The

Notes:

(@

Company (continued)

The Company was incorporated on 19 June 2013 with an initial authorised
share capital of HK$380,000 divided into 38,000,000 ordinary shares of
par value of HK$0.01 each. On the date of incorporation, 1 ordinary share
of HK$0.01 which was allotted and issued nil paid to the subscriber was
transferred to All Divine Limited (“All Divine”) at nil consideration, and 1
ordinary share of HK$0.01 was allotted and issued nil paid to Fortune Zone
Global Limited (“Fortune Zone”) at nil consideration.

Pursuant to a written resolution passed on 22 November 2013,
the authorised share capital was increased from HK$380,000 to
HK$100,000,000 by creation of an additional 9,962,000,000 ordinary shares
of par value of HK$0.01 each.

On 22 November 2013, the Company acquired the entire issued share
capital of Great Entrepreneur from Mr. Tien and Mr. Gozashti. In exchange,
the Company allotted and issued 500,000 shares to each of All Divine and
Fortune Zone credited as fully paid under the instructions of Mr. Tien and Mr.
Gozashti respectively.

On the same date, the Company acquired the entire issued share capital
of Transformed Holdings from Mr. Tien and Mr. Gozashti. In exchange, the
Company allotted and issued 499,999 shares, credited as fully paid, to each
of All Divine and Fortune Zone and credited as fully paid at par the 1 nil paid
share held by each of All Divine and Fortune Zone under the instructions of
Mr. Tien and Mr. Gozashti respectively.

On 3 December 2013, 224,000,000 ordinary shares were allotted and issued
at par value of HK$0.01 to each of All Divine and Fortune Zone, credited as
fully paid at par by way of capitalisation of the sum of HK$4,480,000 debited
to the share premium account.

Pursuant to the share placing on 3 December 2013, 150,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each were issued at a price of HK$0.35 per share for a
total consideration (before expenses) of HK$52,500,000. Accordingly, the
Company’s share capital was increased by HK$1,500,000 and the balance
of the proceeds of approximately HK$45,170,000, after deducting the
listing expenses of approximately HK$5,830,000, was credited to the share
premium account.

27. BA (&
AT ()

McE

(@)

(b)

(©

(d)

©)

RRABIRZZE—=F A+ NBEMK
I HIAVATE IR A B 380,000 87T ¢
/538,000,000 fi% & i% T (& 0.01 7 7T HY
LA - R A - RARIE
Z A {& % B A Al Divine Limited ([All
Divine]) & FFortune Zone Global
Limited ([ Fortune Zone ) #3210%0.01
BTERERETHEBER o

BRER=-_ZT—=F+—A=+=H@B
K E MRS - #£1535%9,962,000,000
&k EmE.COE L 2 &Mk
& TE BN B $380,00078 T i N =
100,000,000 7T

RZE-—=F+—A=Z+=0 &R
7[R [ % 4 & Gozashti 2t 4 Wi B Great
Entrepreneur ()2 502 1 TARA - iR
5 A % 4 K Gozashti e £ HIIE TR H
Al & Al Divine 2 Fortune Zone & & it
% X 317 500,000 BE A BEZIVESIUR AR
PERZIR -

RE R A2 A [ [ %A & Gozasht
% 4 U B8 Transformed Holdings #9
EHEBHTRA UREBEER
Gozashti%t & # 3 &~ 2 Bl MAI
Divine X Fortune Zone & B fd % % %
77499,999 IR A BRZIIVER R MR D 1E R
¥ A 3% All Divine J Fortune Zone
EEFAN 1 BRAERABG ZEEA
BRSIVERR ©

MZZT—=F+=A=H 224,000,000
[ B EIRFR0.01B TN EESD
Bl B2 2 K2 2% 77 T All Divine X Fortune
Zone * 3@iB 15 4,480,000 7 7T K 5 B
FREAEEE ARD G ERY] AR
/% o

BER-ZT—=F+=-A=H#ETH
% 17 B & - 150,000,000 f% & A% & &
0.01 BT L BEIRE LT R0.357E T
HESETT - ARE (NREXA) A
52,500,000 7T, » A Ik - AR RI#AR
78381 1,500,000 78 7T ¢ M A4S 5K A
EE#) 45,170,000 870 (AHIBR EiRS
#95,830,0007%70) B at ABRIDIHIER ©
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28. RESERVES
The Group

(@)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Share premium

The share premium account represents the excess of the
proceeds received over the nominal value of the Company’s
shares issued, net of share issue costs.

Merger reserve

Merger reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal value of the share capital of the
subsidiaries acquired by the Company pursuant to the
Reorganisation and the nominal value of the shares issued
by the Company.

Statutory reserve

According to the relevant PRC laws, the subsidiary
established in the PRC is required to transfer at least
10% of its net profit after tax, as determined under the
PRC accounting regulation, to a statutory reserve until the
reserve balance reaches 50% of the subsidiary’s registered
capital. The transfer of this reserve must be made before
the distribution of dividend to the subsidiary’s equity
owners. The statutory reserve is non-distributable other
than upon the liquidation of the subsidiary.

Translation reserve

Translation reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign subsidiaries. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 4.3.

31 December 2014 —ZE—M&E+-F=+—H

28. %
AEE

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

A0 E

Mty (B BRIE B W PSSO H
ARRREETIROEE IR
MBEITEM) WERE -

GOt

REENA GHERIER A RIRE
AR B A R R A (B
EAA ARG EEZ B
24

EEMRE
RIFEBHBIERE  EFBEK
VR BARAE DK ERK
BRAFE10% (REDESFR
DIERE) BAEERE  EER
BRETREDIME A B E A
50% 73 1b © % ) BB AT
A A Rl A D IKAE.
ZRIEL o BRITBARERIN -
EERBTEDIK

BEHE

BH B RN EEN B AT
BTSRRI A 2 0 2
o IR BN 430
BEBAEITRE -

111



1 1 2 Runway Global Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2014

Notes to the Financial Statements 8178 ki

31 December 2014 —Z—M&E+-F=+—H

28. RESERVES (continued) 28. il (@)
The Company ¥ /N
Share Contributed Accumulated
premium surplus loss Total
IR RE BABE RitE#E @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAT TET TR

(note)
(PfzE)
At 19 June 2013 RZZ—=FXA+hA

(date of incorporation) Gaijavazl:i) - - - -
Loss for the period and total FENEERAFE

comprehensive loss for the period 2HEELS - - (11,011) (11,011)
Arising from the Reorganisation REEH (FH5E27(0)

(note 27(c)) - 63,583 - 63,583
Capitalisation issue (note 27(d)) BAMLET (ME27(d) (4,480) - - (4,480)
Issuance of shares upon placing RECERETIRGD

(note 27(e)) (FfEE27(e) 45,170 - - 45,170
At 31 December 2013 and RZZE—=F+=-A=1+—H

1 January 2014 k=Z—mF—-A—H (11,011)

Loss for the year and total rEEBBERAFE
comprehensive loss for the year TEEERE (822)
At 31 December 2014 R-E-m&E+=A=1+—-H (11,833)
Note: Contributed surplus of the Company represents the difference between the MaE © AR RREABSBRIERIBEAFTUEEKT
net asset value of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the Reorganisation BARREEFAEEANRN REREZRAT
and the nominal value of the share issued by the Company in exchange BITROEENZESRE ©

thereof.
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29. LEASE COMMITMENTS - GROUP 20. HERIE - AKH
(a) Finance lease commitments (a) MEREHRIE
The Group leased its office equipment under finance AEEBEMERS (FTHHEE
leases with an average lease term of 5 years. The Group’s FHARAT) HEERLAER
obligation under finance leases are secured by the lessors’ o ARERRMERERAT &
title to the leased assets. BHEEASHEEE 2 HAE
VEPEIR ©
Interest rate underlying all obligations under finance leases FrERMERNEREZ FEERS
is fixed at respective contract date at 5.0% (2013: 6.0%) E& 4B BEE /0% (ZF
per annum. —=%F :6.0%) °
Future minimum rental payables are as follows: RREMFERSHIWOT ¢
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
FExT FAT
Within one year —FR 280 264
In the second to fifth years E_ERF 958 176
1,238 440
Less: Future finance charges  Jil : <R GLE & (129) (22)
Present value of minimum HEAEMNFRE
lease payments 418
Present value of minimum lease payments included in FTARRE MR RNRERE
consolidated statement of financial position is as follows: NFIREHIAT ¢
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTH&T FHT
Interest-bearing borrowings - st EEE -
Current portion BNERER 4> 246
Interest-bearing borrowings - it S fEE -
Non-current portion JERNHRER 172

418
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29. LEASE COMMITMENTS — GROUP (Continued)

(b) Operating lease commitments
Future minimum rental payable under non-cancellable
operating lease of the Group in respect of land and
buildings are as follows:

20, AERE - &x&£8 (»)
(b) REHEHRAIE
AREBRENAFHZSEHEMR
R Y AR EES

—F A
F_E=RHF

Within one year
In the second to fifth years

I
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR THAT
3,260 2,664
2,870 3,199
6,130 5,863

The Group leases certain properties under operating leases.
The leases run for an initial period of 1 year to 5 years
(2013: 1 year to 5 years). None of these leases include any
contingent rentals.

30. LITIGATION

Since 2011, the Group’s subsidiary, Runway HK, had dispute
(the “Dispute”) with an independent PRC-established supplier
(the “Respondent”) over (i) non-delivery of certain apparels (the
“Goods”) by the Respondent to the customer of Runway HK
amounted to US$342,000, (i) the advance of US$130,000 by
Runway HK to pay the shipment cost of the Goods, and (i) the
Respondent’s non-delivery of a large portion of apparels which
represented part of the Goods that Runway HK had subsequently
agreed to purchase and paid for.

REL2HEE AEEHEETY
X-HEVMHPRY—ERF(=F
—=%F —ERF)  HEHAERIE
REMRAEE -

30. FFA
BR-ZZ——F  AEEHHNBEAR]
BEBEBESA—RE—ZRPEML
NSRBI E M IER ([ERAD s
& THRAR () B AR BB
NEFRXNEFTRERSR (&)
© B A 342,000 T -+ (i) BF A &S B
{130,000 T A X N E MW ER
BEA - Ki) ERALEMNERIS
HEEHESRERNEBETB TN

QAHdt+ 1= O
EEMR -
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LITIGATION (continuea)

In 2012, Runway HK and the Respondent filed statements of
claim and counterclaim to the Hong Kong International Arbitration
Centre (“HKIAC”) for the Dispute. On 28 April 2014, a final
judgement was awarded by the HKIAC in favour of Runway HK
and the Respondent is obliged to settle the overdue amount
totalling US$238,000 (approximately HK$1,856,000) plus
interests with Runway HK. As of 31 December 2014, the Group
is in the process of enforcing the collection of overdue amount in
accordance with the relevant legal procedures. In the opinion of
the directors of the Company, no asset is recognised in respect
of this claim after considering the likelihood of the successful
debt collection. No provision has been made by the Group for
the counterclaim from the Respondent.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION

In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in these
financial statements, the Group had the following significant
related party transactions during the year.

(a) Transactions with related parties

As at the reporting date, maximum amounts of financial
guarantees provided by the directors of the Company with
respect to certain banking facilities granted to and utilised
by the Company’s subsidiary are as follows:

31 December 2014

—F-me+-A=+-A

30. /&R &)

31.

RIT—ZF  BEESRERAR
MR RBEBBEBHERLIRZTARR
REREZ - R-T—MEMAH =+ )N\
B - HEBEBEME P OEL TR
ERNREHR  ZERABRARSE
Y2 (18 EAZIH A 51 238,000 7T (49
1,856,000/8 7T) ERF| B - HZEZ
T-MNE+-_A=+—H0 AEHE
TEARIE BB AR P 1T IR Bl 38 HA 5K
B RARIEERAE  REEKIK
EUETSE AT GEMER - WER UL REERE
REE - NEBMVERZRANKEH
KRR -

B R 5

Rz EM B RREMEAAFBAR

SN REBRERA AT EXRE
TTRG e

(a) SREBHTHNRZ
RIERH  AAREFHET
AARIMBA L H BB EOE
TROBERUNIHRRSS

Mr. Tien
Mr. Tien and
Mr. Gozashti jointly

HEE

M 4% 4 B2 Gozashti 4t 4 T RIEIR

(b) Key management personnel remuneration

The Group defines directors as key management personnel
and their remuneration are set out in note 10(a).

SEOT
2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET FHT
41,742
113,000
b) EEEBAENHE

FEBEEREFTREIREEA
8 - mENMEEHTEE10@)
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32. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

—FT-mFFTZA=t+—H

32. ¢RITESE
RBEHFATESRTAERINER
BT :

The Company

YN
2014
HK$°000
THET

The Group
A58

2014
HK$'000
T

2013
HK$'000
TAT

2013
HKE'000
TAT

129 1,396

63,181 77,635
35,349 18,275

9,835 9,420
59,828 51,037

38,487

168,322 167,763

Financial assets BBEE

Financial assets at fair value ~ AAF{E:FE BZE:A
through profit or loss EHBERNIBEE

- Derivative financial instruments - T4 4B T &

Loans and receivables EFRENFEA

- Trade and bills receivables - B S EMFIBRENEE

- Deposits and other receivables - 124 I Kt fE YL TE

— Amount due from a subsidiary - FE—FEHIE A

— Pledged bank deposits - BEAFITER

— Cash and bank balances - Re RRITET

Financial liabilities B%EE

Financial liabilities REENAHENNBEE

at amortised cost
- Trade and bills payables
- Accruals and other payables
- Amounts due to subsidiaries
- Interest-bearing borrowings

- ASRNFERENER
- BREARABENTR
- ENMBRAHE

- RER

67,791 -
14,436 342
- 2,716
3,131 9,564

85,358 98,622

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE

MEASUREMENTS

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of
financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations and in
its investment activities. The financial risks include market risk
(including foreign currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk

and liquidity risk.

33. E!;H%Jﬂl@%‘ﬁ&’&$ﬁ%‘l‘
=

AEERERBEBBREPRRER
BhAAeRTAMAZM KRR -
BHRREET SRR (BFENER
BRAEER) - FERREABES
B o
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS (continued)

Financial risk management is coordinated at the Group’s
headquarters, in close co-operation with the board of directors.
The overall objectives in managing financial risks focus on
securing the Group’s short to medium term cash flows by
minimising its exposure to financial markets.

(a) Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value
or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Group’s
exposures to currency risk arise mainly from its overseas
sale transactions and settlement of its overseas purchases,
both of which are primarily denominated in US$ and RMB.
These are not the functional currencies of the Group entities
to which these transactions relate. The Group also has
interest-bearing borrowings primarily denominated in USS$.

All the Group’s foreign exchange structured forward
contracts are approved by the executive directors. In
addition, the Group will not enter into any additional foreign
exchange structured forward contracts unless advance
approval by the shareholders has been obtained while the
executive directors and their related parties shall abstain
from voting. The Group performs analysis for monitoring of
the foreign exchange structured forward contracts.

31 December 2014 —ZE—M&E+-F=+—H

33.

BEREERAFES
2 (8)

AEENHBRREEEEEEEY
AETmAEBBETGHE - BEER
FEEEAELLINALESRT
352 8B40 oA AR 7 4 B ) 5 A 5 PR R

e
EFineE °

(@) MR Bz
SN R R TS S R T A A AT Es
KRR ERERINEE RS E M
HE)Z R - ANEE R INE R B
FEREEGIMNEER S RER
BINEE  DRIEBEETRAR
BEHE - ZFEBWIIERFG IR
MAEE TRV o &

SEENEEEENETE -

REEMAZEBIEIINER]SH
BERITESZE - I - AR
BTN G R ERSMEBIEINE
BH - BRIERERIUSRRRTILE -
RIS TE R N AR iz
KR o AEEG BRI ARSI
EERMAETOMLERZE

K-
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE  33.

MEASUREMENTS (continued)
(a) Foreign currency risk continued)
Summary of exposure

As at 31 December 2014, the carrying amounts of the
Group'’s financial assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies, i.e. currency other than the functional
currency of the respective group entities, are as follows:

Financial
assets

MHEE

HK$’000
TR

As at 31 December 2014 R-E-m&E+=-H=+-A
RMB ARE 9,117
us$ i 129,132

As at 31 December 2013 R-Z-=#+-H=1+-H

BEEREERAFES

2 ®)

(@) INEERBE (&)
B B2 R
R-ZE—WF+—-_A=+—8 -
REBASNE (AR EETEHN
EEEME AN EEE) FHE BT
BEEMBEMNERmENT

Notional

amounts of

derivative

Financial financial

liabilities instruments

fTESMIA
g 3= £&{E szt
HK$’000 HK$000 HK$’000
TET TET TET

(1,183)
(72,915)

RMB AR 19,727 (37.807) 304,499 286,329
Uss £ 92,370 (44,915) - 47,455
Foreign exchange rate sensitivity analysis [E =S BE 5T

Since HK$ is pegged to US$, the Group does not expect
any significant movements in HK$/US$ exchange rate. The
following table illustrates the sensitivity of the Group’s profit
after tax for the year and equity in regard to a 3% change
in RMB exchange rate. The rate is used when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s best assessment
of the possible change in foreign exchange rates.

MBI TN - AEETE
WA T RTTER TSR AL
MEAEE - TREEAKEN
FRRBIR RN Mg AR
PERELI%HHNERE - [E
ETRAEZEERABERIBR
EHONERRERA - REEEY
PE R A REREE) 2 BREMLRT -
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(@)

(b)

Foreign currency risk (continued)
Foreign exchange rate sensitivity analysis (Continued)

The sensitivity analysis of the Group’s exposure to foreign
currency risk at the reporting date has been determined
based on the assumed percentage changes in foreign
currency exchange rates taking place at the beginning
of the financial year with all other variables held constant
throughout the year.

31 December 2014

—F-me+-A=+-A

33. I EMEE R AFE

2 ®)
(a) MR (2)
EZRHRBEDWN (&)

HK$ to RMB BLTRARYE
Appreciated by 3% FHE3%
Depreciated by 3% §7{E3%

The Company does not have any significant exposures to
foreign currencies as at 31 December 2013 and 2014.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value or cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of the
changes in market interest rates. The Group’s interest rate
risk arises primarily from interest-bearing borrowings which
are at variable rates (note 26) and the Group’s pledged
bank deposits and bank balances which were bearing
floating interest rate (notes 22 and 23). The Group has
not used any derivative to hedge its exposure to interest
rate risk. The policies to manage interest rate risk which
have been followed by the Group since prior years are
considered to be effective.

(b)

REE RS B HPTE EIME
B2 BURRE DT TR NS [E =X
RN N G ] el S
EHMAEMEERNBEFER

BRTETEE -

Increase/(decrease) in
profit after tax

BREBLEEFIEM, (OBD)

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TAT
307 1,167

(91) 1,152

AKARN_ZE—=FEKR_-T—N
F+-A=+—HTEAFREKX
N R

=R = Bex

FEEES ke T AENAFE
IR S RER TS R M
WK 2 R - REBAFIER
SEFEREFEEMEE (M
26) RAEEMEEPIRITFR
RARTTEE T IR 52 BN F R (B
FT22%23) c AEEYW KEH
AAPTE T A SR EFRERE
REBMATFROAA—EEE
FIE RIS - BREBRER
BEM -
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(b)

(c)

Interest rate risk (continued)
Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The following table illustrates the sensitivity to a reasonably
possible change in interest rates, with all other variables
held constant, of the Group’s profit after tax for the year
and equity, with effect from the beginning of the years.
These changes are considered to be reasonably possible
based on observation of current market conditions. The
calculations are based on the Group’s floating rate financial
instruments held at the end of the reporting period. The
analysis has been prepared assuming these financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. There is no impact on
other components of combined equity in response to the
possible change in interest rates.

33. I EMEE R AFE

2 ®)
(b) FEREE (&)
FIRYBRE D HT

Increase by 100 basis points &1 100 {EE 24
Decrease by 100 basis points ¥ 4> 100 {EE 24

The Company does not have any significant exposures to
interest rates as at 31 December 2013 and 2014.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a
financial instrument would fail to discharge its obligation
under the terms of the financial instrument and cause a
financial loss to the Group. The Group’s exposure to credit
risk mainly arises from granting credit to its customers in
the ordinary course of its operation.

(c)

TRIRNEFRE EE SRR
BZERT - ARBEZFERAT
BRREN LR H N ZEF)
ERZ AT BN R B Y 2 U
€ o ZEEBHEBRERBRITHN
BERAEHATREHIR - FHETY
REBAEERBERRAFTEZ
FREMTEET - DITIHER
RBEMRBRITEZZEFER
TAREFHETEMRER - 7
K2R RENH A a2 Hofh
oY EZE -

2014 2013
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TAET
45

(49)

RIE—=FR-_T—F+—
R=+—HBARRQRAWBEMEKR
Gl

FERR
FERREERIACZHFAIR
ERERMITAZEIETHE
T WEHAKEREHHER
2R - ARENEERREE
KEABEBBREPARESE
HiEE -
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(c) Credit risk (continued)

The Group continuously monitors defaults of customers
and other counterparties, identified either individually or by
group, and incorporate this information into its credit risk
controls. The Group’s policy is to deal only with creditworthy
counterparties. The Group’s management considers that all
the financial assets that are not impaired as at the reporting
date are of good credit quality, including those that are past
due. There is no requirement for collaterals by the Group.

Concentrations of credit risk are managed by customer/
counterparty and by geographical region. The Group
had certain concentrations of credit risks as 79% (2013:
77%) of the total trade receivables are due from two of
its largest external customers as at 31 December 2014
(2013: two). The directors carry a periodic review on the
creditworthiness on these customers and consider the
exposure to such credit risk is minimal. Further quantitative
data in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising
from trade and bills receivables are disclosed in note 19 to
the financial statements.

The Group and the Company has deposited its cash with
various banks. The credit risk on bank balances is limited
because most of the Group’s cash are deposited with
major banks located in Hong Kong and/or the PRC.

The credit policies have been followed by the Group since
prior years and are considered to have been effective in
limiting the Group’s exposure to credit risk to a desirable
level.

31 December 2014

—F-me+-A=+-A

33. I EMEE R AFE

= ()

(c)

FERE @)

REEFBEEERNRRFBEZS
REAMEFHIZERER - AR
SERBREEPAAZER - K
SRR BERGERIFZH
FHETRS - AEEEEER
RBREERHARBHIREZPT
BYMBEENREEERRY
BRETEANE - NAEELT
ERIEHm o

EHhEERBIZER HF IR
WEEE - R=_FT—WE+—A1
=f+—H ' xEEEETEFRE
BRK 5E5RKKBER
ZT9% (B —Z4F 77%) -
TYHEMBRARINABREEER
(ZE2—=F : MA) - EIHRZ
ERpP 7 EREETESR
VYREZEERBTK - AEH
REBEZERRFEREREIE
BEERRE ZE— TS BN
KR 19RWE -

REERARRESFIRTER
SR - ARAKEAR RS
BIFERAREE R, LPBHA
BIRTT - RTTEFRNEERR
BR -

rEBEEATFE —BEdAZRE
EEBCR - BABRERBEM
EASEBERZHEERRR ST
IR o

121



122

Runway Global Holdings Company Limited
Annual Report 2014

Notes to the Financial Statements 817k 7+

31 December 2014 —Z—M&E+-F=+—H

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(d) Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed
adequate by the management to finance the Group’s
operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash
flows. The management monitors the utilisation of bank
facilities.

The following tables show the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s
interest-bearing borrowings, based on undiscounted
cash flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates current at
the reporting date) and the earliest date the Company can
be required to pay.

Specifically, for interest-bearing borrowings which contain
a repayment on demand clause which can be exercised
at the bank’s sole discretion, the analysis shows the cash
outflow based on the earliest period in which the entity can
be required to pay, that is if the lenders were to invoke their
unconditional rights to call the loans with immediate effect.
The maturity analysis for other interest-bearing borrowings
is prepared based on the scheduled repayment dates.
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE

Notes to the Financial Statements B #%#& M7t

31 December 2014

MEASUREMENTS (continued)
(d) Liquidity risk (continued)

Group

Carrying undiscounted

amount

SREE
HK$'000

TR

At at 31 December 2014

Non-derivative financial
instruments:

- Trade and bills payables

- Accruals and other payables

- Interest-bearing borrowings

R-Z-OFE+=A=1+-8H
FITESRIEA

HENFIRRERNFE
RERRAMEMNTE

ey
SfEE

o8 E

\

-E
-1
-3

=

/

At at 31 December 2013

RZZ—=F+=ZF=1+—H

33.

Rehess

—F-me+-A=+-A

BREMEER A FEE
B (®)
(d RBESEE (2)

A5%E

Total
contractual

Less than
one year or
repayable on
demand
—FRH
AREREE
HK$’000
TR

One year or
cash flow above
REREHN
—FHUL

HK$’000

TET

HK$'000
TET

Non-derivative financial FTESMTA:
instruments:
~ Trade and bills payables - B RENERENZE 72,712 72,712 72,712 -
- Accruals and other payables - JEf2 B A & H i e 708 16,346 16,346 16,346 -
- Interest-bearing borrowings - AT EfEE 9,564 9,586 9,410 176
98,622 98,644 98,468 176
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(d) Liquidity risk (continued)

Company

Carrying undiscounted repayable on
amount

SREE
HK$'000

TR

At at 31 December 2014
Amounts due to subsidiaries

R-B-mE+=RA=1-AH
FERIBRRFA

33. I EMEE R AFE

B #)
(d) REBEEREE (@
AR

Total
contractual

Less than
one year or
One year or
demand above

—FRH
AREREE
HK$’000
T8

cash flow
REREHN
HeRBHAE
HK$’000
TET

—FgiE
HK$'000
TiEx

At at 31 December 2013 \ZE-=F+ZA=+—H

Other payables Hitp e 3E 342 342 342 -

Amounts due to subsidiaries  FEfTFI B BIFIE 2,716 2,716 2,716 -
3,058 3,058 3,058 -

The following table that summarises the maturity analysis of
interest-bearing borrowings with a repayment on demand
clause based on agreed scheduled repayments set out
in the loan agreements. The amounts include interest
payments computed using contractual rates. Taking into
account the Group’s financial position, the directors do not
consider that it is probable that the bank will exercise its
discretion to demand immediate repayment. The directors
believe that such interest-bearing borrowings will be repaid
in accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set out
in the loan agreements.

TRELSIM B IR EREE G
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE

31 December 2014

“EF-mET-A=t-A

33. I EMEE R AFE

MEASUREMENTS (continueq) 2 ®)
(d) Liquidity risk (continued) (d) REBEZERER (&)
Group rEHE
Total
contractual
Carrying undiscounted Less than One year or
amount cash flow one year above
RBREHN
REE FReREAH —FR gt
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000
THET TET THET TER
At at 31 December 2014 R-B-ME+=-A=1+—-H 2,022 2,168 667 1,501
At at 31 December 2013 RZZB-=F+-A=1—H 9,082 9,413 7,244 2,169
(e) Fair value measurements recognised in the (e) REABIRR RN D

statement of financial position

The fair values of trade and bills receivables, deposits
and other receivables, amount due from a subsidiary,
pledged bank deposits, cash and bank balances, trade
and bills payables, accruals and other payables, current
portion of interest-bearing borrowings and amounts due to
subsidiaries approximate to their carrying amounts largely
due to the short term maturities of these instruments.

The fair values of the non-current portion of interest-
bearing borrowings have been calculated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using the rates currently
available for instruments on similar terms, credit risk and
remaining maturities.

The Group enters into foreign exchange structured forward
contracts with two creditworthy banks in Hong Kong.
These forward currency contracts are measured using
valuation techniques similar to a forward pricing model,
with the resulting value discounted back to present value.
The models incorporate various market observable inputs
including the credit quality of counterparties, and foreign
exchange spot and forward rates. The carrying amounts of
these forward currency contracts are the same as their fair
values.

FHEIE
BHREFAERBERRE  2E
Ko Bt WSRO ~ e U — T B
RAFAEEIPRITER - BE
RiR1THETE - EHEMNFIARE
NRE - BIRERREMENK
H - FHREEZEHE D k&S
MBARFIRZ A EERRE
BEABEE  REAZETIAZ
HARREUE -

AHEBEZIFRIME S 2 AFE
TR AT 2 E R FH -
FERRERSBBRZ TAZE
FEBHRRKRES RE M
REFEFEMBEERIT 2R
TTRIM NS EBIEEIA W - %
FHNEIEBILRIA DT RSE
EMREREZ EREBENE
U EERMEHFTE - ZFER
A EREEAIBRNT 5% AR
B BRHEFITZEEERIRK
SNE 2 BNEA S = AR - 2255 iR
HISME S K 2 REEEE N FE
I
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31 December 2014 —Z—M&E+-F=+—H

33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(e) Fair value measurements recognised in the
statement of financial position continueq)

Fair value hierarchy

The following tables present financial assets measured at
fair value in the consolidated statement of financial position
in accordance with the fair value hierarchy. The hierarchy
groups financial assets into three levels based on the
relative reliability of significant inputs used in measuring the
fair value of these financial assets. The fair value hierarchy
has the following levels:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets;

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
from prices); and

Level 3: inputs for the asset that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).

The level in the fair value hierarchy within which the
financial asset is categorised in its entirety is based on
the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value
measurement.

33. I EMEE R AFE

2 ®)

(e) REBMRRRERINAD
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE

MEASUREMENTS (continued)

(e) Fair value measurements recognised in the
statement of financial position continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The financial assets measured at fair value in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the reporting
date are grouped into the fair value hierarchy as follows:

31 December 2014

33.

Level 1
B1fE
HK$°000
TET

At at 31 December 2014 R-BE-ME+=-B=+—H

Financial assets at fair value AR E:TE BEETA
through profit of loss EHEENBERE
Derivative financial instruments 47428 T A

At 31 December 2013 RZZ—=F+=F=1+—H

Financial assets at fair value M AFEHERE A
through profit of loss EHBEENBERE
Derivative financial instruments  $T4 4@ T A

“EF-mET-A=t-A

BEREERAFES

2 ®)

(e) REBMRRRERINA
FEFE (8)
RPELEE (8)

RIRE B HERSMBARRARA
BAVEFENMBEERER
&8I0 RA TR FERE

Level 2
E2ME
HK$’000
TET

Level 3
B3I
HK$°000
TET

Total
#st
HK$’000
TET

1,396 - 1,396

There were no significant transfers between levels 1 and 2
and no transfers into or out of level 3 during the years.

34. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s capital management objectives are to ensure the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to provide an
adequate return to shareholders by pricing goods and services
commensurately with the level of risk.

The Group actively and regularly reviews its capital structure and
makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions.
The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of the
net debt to equity ratio. For this purpose net debt is defined
as borrowings less cash and bank balances. The Group’s goal
in capital management is to maintain a net debt to equity ratio
of less than 50%. In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders,
issue new shares, return capital to shareholders, raise new debt
financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

34.
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34. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (continuea)

The Group’s net debt to equity ratio at the reporting date was:

34. EXREE continued)
AEBNKE BHNES FHEE#ED
ML & A

2014 2013
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT FHET

3,131 9,564
(9,835) (9,420)
(59,828) (51,037)

(66,532) (50,893)

122,769 97,265

Interest-bearing borrowings FegE
Less: Pledged bank deposits B BIEIRERITE K
Less: Cash and bank balances B Re RIRTTET
Net debts B FE
Total equity ool
Net debts to equity ratio B TR ERE=R

N/A NE A N/A @

35. MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTION

During the year, the Group entered into finance lease
arrangements in respect of property, plant and equipment with a
total capital value at the inception of the lease of HK$1,238,000
(20183: nil). This new lease arrangement replaces the previous
one in which the fixtures, furniture and office equipment with net
carrying amounts of HK$285,000 were returned to the lessor
and the related obligations of HK$318,000 were cancelled by
the lessor. The cancellation of previous lease arrangement has
been regarded by the Group as disposals of property, plant and
equipment.

35. TEFBRERS

FN - AEERNAEHABBEERNE
{4858 1,238,000 B THME « BEX
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